NPort Server Pro User's Manual

for DE-303/308

Fourth Edition, Mar. 2001



Moxa Technologies Co., Ltd.

Tel: +866-2-8919-1230 Fax: +886-2-8919-1231 www.moxa.com service@moxa.com.tw

NPort Server Pro User's Manual

The software described in this manual is furnished under a license agreement and may be used only in accordance with the terms of that agreement.

Copyright Notice

Copyright © 2000 Moxa Technologies Co., Ltd. All rights reserved. Reproduction without permission is prohibited.

Trademarks

MOXA is a registered trademark of Moxa Technologies Co., Ltd. All other trademarks or registered marks in this manual belong to their respective manufacturers.

Disclaimer

Information in this document is subject to change without notice and does not represent a commitment on the part of Moxa.

Moxa provides this document "as is", without warranty of any kind, either expressed or implied, including, but not limited to, its particular purpose. Moxa reserves the right to make improvements and/or changes to this manual or the product(s) and/or program(s) described herein at any time.

Information provided in this manual is intended to be accurate and reliable. However, Moxa Technologies assumes no responsibility for its use, or for any infringements on the rights of fourth parties which may result from its use.

This product could include technical or typographical errors. Changes are periodically made to the information herein; these changes may be incorporated in new editions of the publication.

MOXA Internet Services

Customer satisfaction is one of our number one concerns. To ensure that customers receive the full benefit of our products, Moxa Internet Services has been set up to provide technical support, driver updates, product information, and user's manual updates.

The following services are provided

E-mail for technica	al support:	<u>support@moxa.com.tw</u>	
FTP site for free d	river updates:	<u>ftp://ftp.moxa.com</u>	01
		<u>ftp://ftp.moxa.com.tw</u>	
	user ID:	ftp	
	password:	your_email_address	
World Wide Web (www) site for produ	act information:		

......<u>www.moxa.com</u> or

......<u>www.moxa.com.tw</u>

Table of Contents

Chapter 1.	Overview	1-1
	Features Package Checklist	1-2
	Front Panel View Rear Panel View	1-3 1-4
Chapter 2.	Getting Started	2-1
	Knowing Your Application	2-2
	Single-Host Mode	2-2
	Multi-Host Mode	2-3
	Connecting the Hardware	2-3 2-5
	Locating NPort Server Pro	
	Connecting to the Network	2-7
	Connecting the Power	2-7
	Connecting Asynchronous Serial Devices	2-7
Chapter 3.	IP Address Configuration	3-1
	Telnet Console	3-2
	DHCP Server	3-4
Chapter 4.	Setting Up Single-Host	4-1
	Driver and Software Installation	4-3
	Using NPort Pro Manager	4-6
	Saving Your Configuration	4-7
	Adding an NPort Server Pro – Add Server Wizard	4-7
	Deleting a Server	
	Modifying COM Name Mappings	
	Configuring Server Properties	
	Upgrading NPort Server Pro Firmware	
	Replacing a Server	4-16
Chapter 5.	Setting Up Multi-Host	5-1
	Driver and Software Installation	5-3

	Using NPort Pro Manager	5-6
	Saving Your Configuration	
	Adding an NPort Server Pro – Add Server Wizard	
	Deleting a Server	
	Modifying COM Name Mappings	
	Un-Mapping a Port	
	Upgrading NPort Server Pro Firmware	
	Configuring Server Properties	
	Access Control	5-17
	Configuring Through View by IP	
	Configuring Through View by Port	
Chapter 6.	Setting Up Custom	6-1
	Driver and Software Installation	6-4
	Using NPort Pro Manager	6-7
	Saving Your Configuration	6-8
	Adding an NPort Server Pro -Add Server Wizard	
	Deleting a Server	6-13
	Modifying COM Name Mappings	6-14
	Un-Mapping a Port	6-15
	Upgrading NPort Server Pro Firmware	6-15
	Configuring Server Properties	
	Access Control	6-18
	Configuring Through View by IP	6-19
	Configuring Through View by Port	
	Adding Routes to NPort Server Pro	6-26
	Adding Routes Through Server Properties	
	Modifying Routes	
	Removing Routes	
	Examples of Internet/Intranet Routing Configurations	6-29
Chapter 7.	Utility Programs	7-1
	Firmware Utility	7-3
	Toolbar Functions	7-4
	NPort Server Monitor	7-7
	Toolbar Funct ions	7-8
	NPort Pro Diagnostic	7-16
	Toolbar Functions	7-17
	Uninstalling the Software	7-25
Chapter 8.	Changing Your Installation Type	8-1

Chapter 9.	Windows 2000 —Installation and Configuration	9-1
	Installing NPort Server Pro Installing NPort Server Pro's Serial Port NPort Server Pro Properties	
Appendix A	Troubleshooting	9-13
	Installation and Configuration Troubleshooting Programming Problems LED Description	A-1 A-4 A-5
Appendix B	About PComm Pro	B-1
	Features Benefits	B-2 B-2
Appendix C	Cable Pinouts	C-1
	10/100BaseT Port Pinouts Asynchronous Port Pinouts CN20040 – RJ45 to Male DB25 RS-232 Cable Pinouts	C-1 C-2 C-3
Appendix D	Setting Up a Windows NT/95/98 Network	D-1

1 Overview

Welcome to Moxa NPort Server Pro, an Industrial Serial Device Server that greatly enhances the ability of a Windows NT/95/98 host to control multiple serial port devices over a TCP/IP based Ethemet network.

This chapter is an overview of NPort Server Pro and includes the following:

- Features
- Package Checklist
- □ Front Panel View
- Rear Panel View

NPort Server Pro provides a data communication solution for connecting Windows NT/95/98 hosts to multiple asynchronous RS-232 serial ports through a TCP/IP network. Each model has 8 (DE-308) or 16 (DE-303) asynchronous RS-232 serial port connections, and one 10/100 Mbps Ethemet connection, allowing any device that supports primarily the asynchronous communications protocol to attach to a network. NPort Server Pro works like an add-on multi-port serial board to the NT/95/98 server, but with one major advantage—the TCP/IP network. Since the Windows NT/95/98 host communicates with the COM ports on Nport Server Pro over a TCP/IP network, you are able to control asynchronous serial devices from virtually anywhere in the world.

Although it connects through the virtual link of the Ethemet, the ports on NPort Server Proare recognized as real COM ports by the Windows NT/95/98 operating system. NPort Server Pro provides the basic transmit/receive data functions, as well as RTS, CTS, DTR, DSR, and DCD control signals. Moreover, the NPort Server Pro driver is fully compatible with the Windows NT/95/98 standard COM driver.

NPort Server Pro can be used with your existing applications that support serial communication. It also comes with a utility program providing a simple step-by-step installation procedure, and a maintenance wizard that gives you easy access to your asynchronous devices.

NPort Server Pro User's Manual 1-1

Features

- Provides a stand-alone multi-port serial solution, over a TCP/IP network, for connecting 8 or 16 COM ports for each NPort Server Pro
- Long range connection and distributed serial device control over an Ethernet network
- Easy expansion to provide up to 256 serial ports for one Windows NT server
- Supports sharing of the server and its ports to multiple hosts
- □ Remote control of NPort Server Pro over the Internet and Intranet
- Driver for Windows NT/95/98 platform
- General Fixed TTY driver for SCO Unix and Linux
- □ Easy configuration and management under Windows NT/95/98
- Secured access control to network hosts
- □ Free Moxa PComm Pro Serial Control Library for easy serial device control
- □ Serial connection speed from 50 to 230.4 Kbps
- □ 19-inch rack-mountable

Package Checklist

- One 8 or 16 port NPort Server Pro
- NPort Server Pro User's Manual
- Driver and utility programs on 3 1/2-inch floppy diskette or CD
- PComm Pro CD
- PComm Pro registration card
- Power cable
- RJ45 to male DB25 cable
- Cross-wired Ethernet cable
- Rackmount kit, including 2 L-shape metal plates and 12 screws

1-2 NPort Server Pro User's Manual

Front Panel View



Figure 1-1. 16-Port NPort Server Pro Front Panel (DE-303)





Figure 1-2. 8-Port NPort Server Pro Front Panel (DE-308)

Rear Panel View







Figure 1-4. 8-Port NPort Server Pro Rear Panel (DE-308)

2 Getting Started

Now that you are familiar with NPort Server Pro's features and specifications, it's time to install the hardware and get your system up and running.

We begin this chapter with a brief explanation of the operation modes available when using NPort Server Pro, and then discuss the basics of setting it up.

This chapter includes:

- □ Knowing Your Application
 - Single-Host Mode
 - Multi-Host Mode
 - Custom Mode
- **Connecting the hardware**
 - Locating NPort Server Pro
 - Desktop
 - Rack-Mount
 - Connecting to the Network
 - Connecting the Power
 - Connecting Asynchronous Serial Devices

NPort Server Pro User's Manual 2-1

Knowing Your Application

NPort Server Pro is an advanced Industrial Serial Device Server designed to fit into today's everexpanding networking world. It extends the usage of traditional COM ports on a PC-an isolated machine with restricted ports—to being able to access the ports over a TCP/IP network. Through the nature of networking, you are able to control your serial devices from a distance, either over a LAN, or even over the Internet.

Since NPort Server Pro is connected through a TCP/IP network, you will need to know some basic facts about networking in order to get the server hooked up conectly. In the next section we discuss the Single-Host Mode.

Single-Host Mode

Traditional serial port communication uses a COM port board that slides into one of the slots on the back of your PC. In this case, only the computer containing the board can access the serial port. With Moxa's 8/16-port NPort Server Pro serial device server, communicating with COM ports is much more versatile, since you are now able to access the COM ports from a distance. For example, the server could be located in Stockholm, and the serial devices in Frankfurt.



Figure 2-1. Traditional Multi-Port Serial Communication

If you use the type of application described in the previous paragraph, NPort Server Pro with its Ethemet connection is the best solution available for adding RS-232 serial devices to your computer. It allows you to extend the range of your operation, increase the number of ports used, and provides high throughput. The installation procedure is as simple as installing a traditional multi-port serial board. You don't have to spend a lot of time learning advanced networking concepts to configure NPort Server Pro. The least you will need to do is install an Ethemet card in your computer.

2-2 NPort Server Pro User's Manual



Figure 2-2. Single-Host Mode using two NPort Server Pros

Multi-Host Mode

For advanced applications you may share one NPort Server Pro with multiple hosts on a Local Area Network (LAN). Unlike serial devices bundled to a dedicated host, sharing one NPort Server Pro with several computers saves resources, since you no longer need to add multi-port serial boards to each computer. Figure 2-3 shows the basic concept of the Multi-Host application.

For example, let's assume that you have three hosts on the same network, and each host requires 5 serial ports to communicate with five serial devices. All you need to do is install one 16 port NPort Server Pro, and connect 5 ports to each of the three hosts. In some types of applications, such as a modern pool, or other RS-232 device pooling situations, you can allow different hosts to access the same serial devices. The TCP/IP protocol automatically handles the time-sharing problem introduced by this type of application.

NPort Server Pro User's Manual 2-3



Figure 2-3. Three-Hosts sharing two NPort Server Pros

If you decide to configure your NPort Server Pro as Multi-Host, you will need to know something about the networking concept of assigning IP addresses. There are two basic roles at play with this application mode—the administrator, and general users. The administrator assigns a decideted IP address to NPort Server Pro, so that other Windows NT/95/98 hosts on the network, i.e., the general users, are able to locate the server that is being administered. The administrator also decides who has the right to access which ports. General users only need to install the driver and software, add NPort Server Pro to their system, and then run their application. These procedures protect NPort Server Pro's security, and help keep the server running as a clean, simple device for serial communication.

Note: Multi-Host Mode is designed to be used only at the local level, such as over a LAN.

2-4 NPort Server Pro User's Manual



Figure 2-4. A remote control link diagram

Custom Mode

The Custom Mode of operating NPort Server Pro allows for situations more complex than those mentioned in the two previous subsections. These functions include remote control from an Internet host, setting the ports on NPort Server Pro as WAN ports for remote control, and adding complicated routing protocols. Setting up these types of application requires more network knowledge, and possibly knowledge about the Internet and Intranet. Figure 2-4 shows a complex remote-control example.

In most cases, if NPort Server Prois used for remote access or control, you will need to customize the server to suit your needs. You could be the administrator setting up NPort Server Pro for other Windows NT/95/98 hosts, or you could be a general user with access to NPort Server Pro from a remote site.

Connecting the Hardware

In the previous section we illustrated the general operation modes of NPort Server Pro. In this section we begin by describing how to find a proper location for your server, and then explain how to connect to the network, hook up the power cable, and connect to the server's serial port.

NPort Server Pro User's Manual 2-5

Locating NPort Server Pro

There are two placement options available. NPort Server Pro can be:

- placed on a desktop,
- fixed to a 19-inch rack-mount.

Desktop

This option involves placing NPort Server Pro on a clean, flat, well-ventilated desktop. There are four rubber pads fixed to the bottom of the server, and we recommend leaving sufficient room between NPort Server Pro and neighboring equipment to create clearance for air to circulate.



Note: Please remember to not put anything on top of NPort Server Pro, since this could damage the internal components.

Rack Mount

NPort Server Pro can also be mounted on a standard 19-inch rack-mount. First use four screws to attach the L-shaped brackets to the server. Next, attach the server to the rack-mount with two screws, as shown below.



Figure 2-5. Rack Mount

2-6 NPort Server Pro User's Manual

Connecting to the Network

There are two ways to use the 10/100BaseT Ethernet jack located on NPort Server Pro's back panel (see Figs. 1-3 and 1-4):

- 1. For many of the applications using NPort Server Pro, you will simply plug one end of your Ethernet cable into the 10/100BaseT jack, and the other end into the hub connected to your network.
- 2. In some cases, such as when configuring drivers and software, you will find it convenient to hook NPort Server Pro directly to your computer's Ethernet card. To do this you will need to use a "crossed-cable", such as the one supplied with your server.

Connecting the Power

After connecting NPort Server Pro to your network, you should take the following steps to connect the power cable.

NPort Server Pro's power supply is designed to support 90-260V AC, making it possible for you to use the server regardless of your AC power supply's voltage.



Note: It is strongly recommended that NPort Server Pro be connected to the network before turning on the power.

- 1. Connect the power cord to NPort Server Pro's rear panel.
- 2. Plug the other end of the power cord into an electrical outlet.
- 3. Turn the on/off switch to the I-position.
- 4. Check the power LED on the front panel to verify that the server is receiving power.

Connecting Asynchronous Serial Devices

You may use the RJ-45 to female DB-25 cable included with NPort Server Pro to connect serial devices to the server. Plug the RJ-45 connector into one of the serial port jacks on the server's rear panel, and then connect the DB25 connector to the serial device.

Refer to Appendix C for details on NPort Server Pro's RJ-45 pinouts to make your own cable.



 \bigstar Note: You can also use the RJ-45 to male DB25 cable to connect the server to a modem. Check with Appendix C for pinout details to make your own modem cable.

NPort Server Pro User's Manual 2-7

3 IP Address Configuration

In this chapter we explain how to configure NPort Server Pro's IP address, using:

- Telnet Console
- DHCP Server

The first method uses the Telnet program to access the server over the network. The second method applies if you have a Dynamic Host Configuration Protocol (DHCP) server.

NPort Server Pro User's Manual 3-1

Telnet Console

You may use the Telnet program to easily communicate with NPort Server Pro over a TCP/IP Ethemet network. All you need is the server's current IP address and a computer running the Telnet program, provided the computer is hooked up to the server's network. The example in this section was generated using a Windows NT/95/98 host.



- □ While in the Telnet Console MAIN MENU, the left/right arrow keys move the cursor between menu headings, and pressing the Enter key activates whichever menu heading is highlighted.
- □ After pressing Enter from the MAIN MENU, the Tab key and up/down arrow keys are used to move between configurable options.
- □ The Esc key is used to maneuver backwards. For example, if you have made modifications to the settings listed under the serverConfig menu, press the Esc key to return to the MAIN MENU.
- Carry out the following procedure to configure the server's IP address.
- 1. From the Windows NT/95/98 desktop click on Start and then choose Run.



- 2. Type itelnet [IP_address] in the Open text input box, where
 [IP_address] is the IP address of the NPort Server Pro you intend to configure.
 Click OK to continue.
- 3. When the Telnet window opens up, type 1 to select **ansi/vt100** for **Console terminal type**, and then press **Enter** on the computer keyboard.

IP Address Configuration



4. A connection between your computer and NPort Server Pro should now be established, and the MOXA NPort Server Pro utility program will automatically start running.

Note: After activating the Telnet console, use the following procedure to make sure that the **VT100 Arrows** option is selected. Not doing so could cause the server's name to be changed inadvertently.

5. Choose Preferences from the Telnet Console Terminal menu.



6. Make sure that the VT100 Arrows box in the lower left hand corner of the window is checked, and then click OK to return to the Telnet Console window.



7. Use the keyboard arrow keys to highlight [serverConfig] as shown below, and then press Enter to select this option.

🚮 Telnet - 192.168.127.254		
<u>Connect</u> <u>E</u> dit <u>T</u> erminal <u>H</u> elp		
	ServerPro52260	V1.01
[Server] Line Save Monitor Examine/modify async server	Restart Ping configuration	Exit
Enter: select ESC: previou	s menu	
[Server] Line Save Monitor Examine/modify async server Enter: select ESC: previou	Restart Ping configuration s menu	Exit

NPort Server Pro User's Manual 3-3

8. Use the keyboard arrow keys to position the cursor over the first digit of the IP address.

📑 Telnet - 192.168.127.254			
<u>Connect</u> <u>E</u> dit <u>T</u> erminal <u>H</u> elp			
	ServerPro52260	V1.01	
Server Line Save Monitor Examine/modify async server	Restart Ping I configuration	Exit	
ESC: back to menu Enter: s	select		
NPort Server model NPort Server name IP address IP netmask Gateway DHCP	DE-303 [ServerPro53 []92.168.12 [255.255.0.1 [192.168.1.3 [Disable]	2260 7.254] 0] 254]	1
Serial number Ethernet address Console password	52280 0090E805CC31 [8]	

- 9. Type in the correct IP address and then press Enter to accept this value.
- 10. Press ESC to return to the main menu, and then select Restart to activate the change.

DHCP Server

This section applies if you are using your Windows NT host as a DHCP server. This type of server is set up to provide IP addresses for new devices as they log onto a network. As the operation of NPort Server Pro requires a fixed IP address, we strongly recommend that you establish an IP reservation list in DHCP in order to maintain fixed IP assignments based on the server's MAC address. NPort Server Pro's sunique MAC address, which is required when setting up the DHCP server, can be found on the server's back panel.

Note: For NPort Server pro, the DHCP setting is ENABLED by default.

 Access DHCP Manager from the Windows NT desktop by clicking on Start → Programs → Administrative Tools → DHCP Manager.



3-4 NPort Server Pro User's Manual

2. The left info box of the **DHCP Manager** window will show a list of DHCP hosts currently hooked up to the network.

Note that before you can make changes to the host's parameters, there must be a minus sign (–) located to the left of the server name (**Local Machine** in the example shown below.) If, as shown, there is a plus sign (+) to the left of the server name, use the left mouse button to click on the name of the host until the minus sign appears.

🚱 DHCP Manager	
<u>Server</u> Scope DHCP	Dptions <u>V</u> iew <u>H</u> elp
DHCP Servers	Option Configuration
+ 🕒 *Local Machine*	
J	

3. You must now define the DHCP server "scope".

A scope is simply a range of IP addresses that the server assigns to machines as they log onto the network. Since the assignment is dynamic, the IP address assigned to a particular device can change each time the device is logged in. What we will do is use DHCP Manager to set aside a specific IP address that will always be assigned to your NPort Server Pro when it is hooked up to the network. When the device is not hooked up, the reserved IP address is not used.

If you have already defined a scope, continue with step 5 below.

4. To get started, click on **DHCP Options** and then chose **Scope** from the pull down menu.

🚳 DHCP Man	ager - (Local)		_ 🗆 ×
<u>S</u> erver S <u>c</u> ope	DHCP Options	⊻iew <u>H</u> elp	
DHCP Serv	e <u>S</u> cope	Option Configuration	
- 连 *Local Mac	<u>G</u> lobal		
LQ [203.67	<u>D</u> eraults	ļ	
1			
1			
1			
1			
1			
1			
1			
<u> </u>]		
Edit the configur	ation options for cli	ents of this scope	

NPort Server Pro User's Manual 3-5

5. Once the **Create Scope** (Local) window opens (see below), you will be required to input a range of IP addresses in the **IP Address Pool**.

There is also an **Exclusion Range** used to prevent the DHCP server from issuing addresses to existing devices that have already been assigned IP addresses from this range. By using the **Add** and **Remove** buttons, several different ranges can be excluded, and later included.

- 6. Another item that must be attended to is the **Subnet Mask**. This is a number that is combined with a device's IP address to determine which subnet the device belongs to. For a Class C address you should input 255.255.255.0, and for Class B addresses use 255.255.0.0.
- 7. Make sure the **Unlimited** option under **Lease Duration** is checked. This prevents the system from automatically disconnecting devices that are using IP addresses in the specified range.
- **8.** Assign a name to the scope, and if you would like, include a comment. Click **OK** to accept the values.

Create Scope	- (Local)	K	
- IP Address Po	ol	Fuch ded & ddesses	
<u>S</u> tart Address:	203 . 67 . 8 . 10	Excluded Addresses:	
End Address:	203 . 67 . 8 . 50		
Subnet Mas <u>k</u> :	255 . 255 . 255 . 0]	
Exclusion Ran	ge:		
S <u>t</u> art Address:		Add ->	
E <u>n</u> d Address:		<- Remo <u>v</u> e	
Lease Duration			
Onlimited			
C Limited To	: 3 ■ D <u>a</u> y(s) 00 ■ Ho	ou <u>r</u> (s) 00 🖬 Min <u>u</u> tes	
Name: NPo	rt Addresses		
Comment:			
	ОК	Cancel <u>H</u> elp	

3-6 NPort Server Pro User's Manual

9. A window opens with the question: Activate the new scope now? Click on Yes to activate.



At this point we explain how to input a unique IP address reserved exclusively for use by your NPort Server Pro.

10. From the DHCP Manager – (Local) menu bar, click on Scope, and then select Add Reservations.



11. The Client Properties window that opens contains text input boxes for IP address, Unique Identifier, Client Name, and Client Comment. First enter the selected IP address, and then locate and enter your NPort Server Pro's MAC address in the Unique Identifier field. (The MAC address is located on NPort Server Pro's back panel.)

Be sure to enter the same **Client Name** that was entered in the **Name** field of the **Create Scope - (Local)** window (see step 8 above). The **Client Comment** is optional. At this point you should double-check the MAC address and IP address, and then click **OK** to accept the values.

NPort Server Pro User's Manual 3-7

Client Properties	X
[P Address:	203 . 67 . 8 . 10
<u>U</u> nique Identifier:	0090E804CEA5
Client <u>N</u> ame:	NPort1
Client <u>C</u> omment:	
Lease Expires:	N/A
ОК	Cancel <u>H</u> elp <u>Options</u>

12. To check that the numbers just entered are correct, return to the DHCP Manager main window, click on **Scope**, and then choose **Active Leases** from the pull down menu. The IP address reserved for your NPort Server Pro will be displayed in the window that opens up. Check to make sure that it is accurate.

Active Leases - [203.67.	8.0]		×
Total Addresses in Scope:	41		OK
Active/Excluded:	1 (2%)		<u>C</u> lose
Available:	40 (97%)		Help
Client			
Properties] Dele	te <u>R</u> eco	oncile	Refresh
 Sort leases by <u>IP</u> Addre Sort leases by <u>N</u>ame 	*** 🗖 9	<u>)</u> how Reser	vations Only

4 Setting Up Single-Host

In this chapter we explain how to set up NPort Server Pro for Single-Host Mode. This type of application uses one Windows NT/95/98 server to control several serial devices in a manner similar to the way you would use a traditional multi-port serial board.

We cover the following topics:

- Driver and Software Installation
- Using NPort Pro Manager
 - Saving Your Configuration
 - Adding an NPort Server Pro-Add Server Wizard
 - Deleting a Server
 - Modifying COM Name Mappings
 - Changing All COM Names Consecutively
 - Changing the COM Name of One Port
 - Un-Mapping a Port
 - Configuring Server Properties
 - Server Properties—General
 - Server Properties—Password
 - Server Properties—Transmission
 - Upgrading NPort Server Pro Firmware

NPort Server Pro User's Manual 4-1



4-2 NPort Server Pro User's Manual

Driver and Software Installation

1. Insert the NPort Server Pro disk into either the floppy disk drive or CD ROM drive, depending on the type of disk that was provided.

From the Windows NT/95/98 desktop, click on Start and then choose Run.



2. Type IA:\setup in the **Open** input box if using drive A and then click **OK** (replace A with the correct drive letter if you are using a different drive).



3. The Welcome to NPort Server Pro window opens, giving you the option to continue with the installation process. Click on Next to continue.

NPort Server Pro User's Manual 4-3

<i>NPort</i> Server Pro Setup for				
Window <u>s NT</u>				
	Welcome to NPort Server Pro			
	Cancel			
A g				
Copyright 2000.	All rights reserved. WWW. MOXA. COM			

4. When the **Setup Wizard** window opens, choose **Single-Host**, and then click on **Next** to continue.

Setup Wizard X			
Select your type of installation:			
Single-Host	Provides "single host to multiple NPort Server Pro" operation mode.		
C Multi-Host	Provides "Multiple host to multiple NPort Server Pro" operation mode.		
O Custom	Provides "Multiple host to multiple NPort Server Pro" operation mode and "inter-network" connection.		
	< Back Next > Cancel		

5. The Select Destination Directory window gives you the option to change the directory which program files will be copied to. Click on Next to copy NPort Server Pro files to the given default directory. To choose a different directory, click on Browse, navigate to the desired directory, and then click on Next.

4-4 NPort Server Pro User's Manual



6. The **Installing** window shows the progress of the installation process. Click on **Cancel** at any time to terminate the installation.

Installing	2	
Copying file: D:\Program Files\NPort\	\ManView.exe	
	43%	
[Cancel]		

7. The next window verifies that the installation process has completed. Click on **Next** to continue.

Setup ₩izard		×
NPort Server Pro Setup h Program on to your NT wo	as finished installing t orkstation. Click on N	he NPort Manager ext to Continue.
	Next>	<u>C</u> ancel

Note: If you click on **Cancel** you will need to run Add Server Wizard at a later time to install your NPort Server Pro.

8. Clicking on Next in the previous window activates the Add Server Wizard.

Refer to the subsection *Adding an NPort Server Pro –Add Server Wizard* in the section for instructions on how to add an NPort Server Pro.

NPort Server Pro User's Manual 4-5

Using NPort Pro Manager

When you run the Setup program to install NPort Server Pro software, you are given the option to run the Add Server Wizard. However, you may run NPort Pro Manager at a later time if you decide to add more servers, change server names, remove servers, or change COM names. To start NPort Pro Manager, click on:



Start \rightarrow Programs \rightarrow NPort Server Pro \rightarrow NPort Pro Manager.

This activates the NPort Pro Manager main window, shown below, with server names and model numbers displayed in the left info box. When a particular NPort Server Pro is highlighted, the ports associated with that server; the associated COM port names, and other relevant information, are shown in the right info box.

NPort Pro Manager functions can be selected from either the main menu or the toolbar. As shown below, functions related to servers are listed under the **Server** menu, and port functions are under the **Port** menu. Moreover, when you use the right mouse button to click on a port or server, a window with a list of functions available for the selected item opens up. If you forget the function associated with a particularicon, position the mouse pointer over the icon. This will cause a message window containing the name of the function to pop up.



Figure 4-2. NPort Pro Manager menus and toolbar functions.

Saving Your Configuration

Modifications of Nport Server Pro, or changes to port configurations, must be saved in order to be activated. Choose **Save Configuration** from the **Server** menu, or click on the toolbar **Save all Servers icon** to automatically detect any changes and save them in the appropriate places.

Adding an NPort Server Pro-Add Server Wizard

The Add Server Wizard is activated automatically during the driver and software installation procedure. If you need to add another NPort Server Pro to your system at a later time, run NPort Pro Manager, and then choose Add Server Wizard from the Server menu, or click on the toolbar Add Server button.

1. Select Yes and then click on Next to start the Add Server Wizard.

NPort Server Pro User's Manual 4-7



2. If the NPort Server Pro you wish to add is listed in the Add Server Wizard window, use the mouse to highlight the server **Model** and then click on **Next** to continue.

Add Server Wizard	×	
Single Host	Your NPort Server Pro Select the server from the list below. If you cannot find the server in the list, check your server connection and power cord, and then click on "Find".	
	Model Name IP address Seria DE-303 Server52260 132.168.127.254 5228	
	Find	
	< <u>₿</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > Cancel	

Note: If the server you want to add is not listed in the above window, you will receive the warning window shown below. Check to make sure that the power cord is connected, and the power switch is in the "on" position. Click OK to return to the window shown above, and click on **Find**. The new server should now be listed as shown above.


Note: If you have several servers hooked up to your network, and it's not clear which server is the one you are currently adding, click on **Locate** in the **Add Server Wizard** window shown in step 2 above. The "Ready" LED on the listed server will start blinking, allowing you to identify it.

Add Server Wizard	X
Locate Server	
Name : Server52260 IP address : 132.168.127.254 Serial No : 52280	
You may locate the server with LED blinking now.	
Please find -Blinking S1 for DE-309 -Blinking READY for DE-303 or DE-308.	
Press OK to exit	

3. Select the COM port name that you would like the first port on the server to map to. This will add all of NPort Server Pro's ports (8 or 16, depending on the server model number) to your NT/95/98 system, using consecutively numbered COM names. Click on Next to continue.



4. You will be asked to assign a server password if you are installing a new server. We highly recommend assigning a password, since this will help to prevent other users from changing the server's configuration. Click on **Next** to continue.

Add Server Wizard	
Welcome to	Set Server Password
NPort Server Pro	Your system has no password protection. It is strongly recommended that you set up a password to prevent misuse of the selected server.
Affel family	Server Password:
www.moxa.com	C Auto-Saved
	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > Cancel

Note: Make sure the **Auto Saved** check box is selected if you want your NT/95/98 system to remember the password.

4-10 NPort Server Pro User's Manual

5. Check the Add Server Wizard **Complete!** window to verify that all of the information is correct. Click on **Finish** if everything is correct, or click on **Back** to return to the previous window.



6. The NPort Pro Manager window opens, with the newly installed server listed.

🔚 NPort Pro Manager - Single-Host	
<u>S</u> erver <u>P</u> ort <u>H</u> elp	
••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	

7. Click on the server name to highlight it. Basic information about the server's COM ports will be listed in the right info box.

비원 왕 기원 원	1	1	
🖂 📲 N Pot Sarva	Part	LON	Slatur
🛫 SarvaPra52258(DE 303)	\$ 1	EDM3	Available
	2 2	C0644	Analable
	\$ 3	C0045	Available
	01	00046	Analable
	\$ 5	CDH17	Analable
	\$ 5	CDM8	Analable
	0 7	C0049	Analable
	\$ 8	CCM10	Available
	12. 9	COM11	Analable
	10	COM 12	Available
	@ 11	COM 13	Anallable
	12 12	COM 14	Analable
	\$ 13	COM 15	Analiate
	2 14	COM 15	Analishie
	2 6	COM17	Available
	\$ 16	OCM 19	Analable
	21		
Heady	9,510		KLH



- 8. To add another server, choose Add Server Wizard from the Server menu, or click on the toolbar Add Server icon, and then repeat the above steps.
- **9.** Before exiting NPort Pro Manger you should save the new configuration. Choose **Save Configuration** from the **Server** menu, or click on the toolbar **Save all Servers** icon to carry this out.
- 10. Exit NPort Pro Manager when you finish.

Deleting a Server



If for some reason you need to delete a server from your system, click on the server name to highlight it, and then choose **Delete Server** from the **Server** menu, or click on the toolbar **Delete Server** icon. A warning window will pop up asking if you really want to delete the server. Click **OK** to delete.

Modifying COM Name Mappings



You may use NPort Pro Manager to change previously assigned COM names. Choose **Map Port** from the **Port** menu, or click on the toolbar **Map Port**icon. You will be asked to choose from two options. You may change the name of all servers simultaneously, provided you want the COM port numbers to be consecutive, or, you may change the names one port at a time. The procedure is as follows:

Changing All COM Names Consecutively:

- 1. Click on the server name whose port names you would like to modify.
- 2. Click on port 1 in the right info box.
- 3. Choose Map Port from the Port menu, or click on the toolbar Map Port icon to activate the function.
- 4. Select the COM name that the first port will be mapped to.
- 5. Check the Mapping COM number consecutively box.
- 6. Click **OK** to activate the change.

Map Port 🗙
Port 1 at ServerPro52260
Select the COM port that you would like current port to map to.
Map to : COM3 💌
Mapping COM number consecutively
OK Cancel

Changing the COM Name of One Port

- 1. Click on the server name whose port you would like to modify.
- 2. Click on the port, in the right info box, whose COM name you would like to modify.
- 3. Choose Map Port from the Port menu, or click on the toolbar Map Port icon to activate the function.
- 4. Select the COM name that the port will be mapped to.
- Click **OK** to activate the change. 5.



If you do not need to use a port any more, you may use the UnMapPort function to remove it from your Windows NT/95/98 operating system.

- 1. Click on the port (in the right info box) that you want to remove.
- 2. Choose **UnMap Port** from the **Port** menu, or click on the toolbar Unmap Port icon



Un-Mapping a Port

lacksim N ote: The screen at the right shows the display after unmapping ports 3 and 5.

Configuring Server Properties

The Server Properties function can be used to change the server's name, password, and transmission parameters. Choose Server Properties from the Server menu, or click on the toolbar Server Properties icon to open the Server Properties window.

Map Port	×
Port 1 at ServerPro52260	
Select the COM port that you would like current port to map to.	
Map to : COM3	
Mapping COM number consecutively	
OK Cancel	

Port	COM	Status
1	COM3	Available
i 🔊 2	COM4	Available
3		Available
i 🔊 4	COM6	Available
5		Available
(2) 6	COM8	Available
i 🔊 7	COM9	Available
D 8	COM10	Available
D 9	COM11	Available

Server Properties-General

- Select the General tab in the 1. Server Properties window.
- 2. Modify the server name as desired.
- 3. Select Enable or Disable, for DHCP, depending on whether or not you are using a DHCP server.

Server Properties			×
General Password Transm	ission		
Server Info			
Serial No :	52280		
Server Name :	Server52260		
Server IP	192.168.127.254	ļ]
Netmask :	255.255.0.0]
DHCP:	Enable	🖸 Disable	
		0	K Cancel

Server Properties–Password

To add more security to your NPort Server Pro, it is highly recommended that you set a password as soon as you complete the installation. If you did not set the password while running Add Server Wizard, or you would like to change the current password, you may use the toolbar Properties function to do so.

You may also use this function to "Auto-Save", i.e., to have Windows NT/95/98 remember your password for you. By auto saving the password, you will not be asked to enter the password when modifying server properties from this computer.



Note: Keep in mind that other people using your computer will also have ready access to the NPort Pro Manager functions.

Steps for configuring the server's	
password:	

- 1. Select the **Password** tab in the Server Properties window.
- 2. Enter the current password and new password as indicated.
- 3. Check the Auto Save Password on this computer box if you want Windows NT/95/98 to remember your password.

General Password Transmission		
Guto Save Parsword on this computer		
Change Password		
Current Server Pesaword:		
New Password :		
Contine New Paceword :	12	
Continu New Pacoword :		
Contron New Password:		
Control New Password:		
Confirm New Password:		

lacksim N Note: If you do not check the Auto Save Password on this computer box, you will need to enter the correct password each time you want to view Server Properties.

Server Properties-Transmission

The **Transmission** page allows the user to set the **Transmission Mode** and **TxFIFO** options for each of NPort Server Pro's ports.

Transmission Mode

Select **Hi-Performance** to use buffering technology to accelerate data writing. This allows your communication software to reach maximum data throughput when transmitting large amounts of data. The driver will notify the user that the transmission is complete when the output data length is lower than the LOW WATER setting.

Classical Mode lets the port behave like a generic COM port. Transmission of small data packets is more precise and reliable. In this case, the driver will notify the user that the transmission is complete when all data has been transmitted.

Port No. COM No. Transmission Mode Transmission Mode Transmission Mode Transmission Mode 1 COM3 Hi-Performance Enable Transmission Mode Transmission Mode 2 COM4 Hi-Performance Enable Transmission Mode Transmission Mode 3 COM5 Hi-Performance Enable Transmission Mode Transmission Mode 4 COM6 Hi-Performance Enable Transmission Mode Classical 5 COM7 Hi-Performance Enable Transmission Mode Classical 7 COM8 Hi-Performance Enable Transmission Mode Classical 8 COM10 Hi-Performance Enable Transmission Transmission Mode 9 COM11 Hi-Performance Enable Transmission Transmission 10 COM12 Hi-Performance Enable Transmission Disable 11 COM13 Hi-Performance Enable Disable Disable	rver Prope ieneral Pa	e <mark>rties</mark> assword Tra	ansmission Access C	ontrol Adv	/ance	ed]	
	Port No. 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	COM No. COM3 COM4 COM5 COM6 COM7 COM8 COM9 COM10 COM10 COM11 COM12 COM13	Transmission Mode Hi-Performance Hi-Performance Hi-Performance Hi-Performance Hi-Performance Hi-Performance Hi-Performance Hi-Performance Hi-Performance	Tx FIFO Enable Enable Enable Enable Enable Enable Enable Enable Enable	•	Port No. : 1 Transmission © Hi-Perfo © Classica Tx FIFO © Enable © Disable	I Mode Imance

Tx FIFO

Set to Enable to the get the best performance from the board.

Set to **Disable** to avoid data loss when communicating with plain communication devices using S/W flow control. In this case only one byte will be put into the UART when the FIFO is empty.

Upgrading NPort Server Pro Firmware

Moxa continually upgrades its driver software and server firmware to keep pace with the ever-expanding world of computing. You can use NPort Pro Manager's Upgrade function to cany out the upgrade procedure. Access Moxa's Web site at <u>www.moxa.com</u>to.download the required computer file (contact our sales department if you need assistance with this), and then follow these instructions.



- 1. Stop all port action related to the server you are upgrading.
- 2. Choose Upgrade Server from the Server menu, or click on the toolbar Upgrade icon.
- 3. Locate and then select the filename of the firmware that you downloaded.

Open					? ×
Look jn:	🔄 downloads	-	E	<u>r</u>	8-8- 8-8- 8-8-
nppro303.	rom				
File <u>n</u> ame:	nppro303.rom				<u>O</u> pen
Files of <u>type</u> :			•		Cancel

4. Click on **Open** and then wait until you see an "upgrade completed" message. The server will restart automatically.

Note: When using this procedure, only the selected server's firmware is upgraded. If you know that new NPort Pro Manager software has been released, it is recommended that you uninstall the old NPort Pro Manager program from your NT/95/98 host's hard drive, and then install the new one.

Replacing a Server

In the unlikely event that your NPort Server Proneeds to be replaced, you can use NPort Pro Manager's **Replace Server**. function. This procedure uses NPort Server Pro's "hot-swap" feature, and gives you an easy way to locate the replacement server. The configurations that were set while installing the now defective server will also be saved. Otherwise, you would need to use NPort Pro Manager to delete the old server, and then configure the new server and all of its ports.

Follow the steps below to perform hot-swap:

- 1. Click on the server that has a question mark (?) on top of it to highlight it.
- 2. Choose Replace Server..from the Server menu.



Setting Up Single-Host

- **3.** The **Replace Server..** window that opens up shows a list of servers that you have not configured. You can identify the new server by looking at the serial number.
- 4. Confirm the Server with the pop-up window.
- 5. If the new server is password protected, enter the pre-set password when prompted to do so.
- 6. Click **OK** to save the current settings to the new server.
- 7. Click on Save Configuration to activate.

Note:Previous configurations,

including server name and port settings, are retained after going through the above described Replace Server procedure. However, the server password will be set to the one you entered during the replacement procedure, so you will need to start using the new password to access the server.

elect this server fo	r replacement from the	i list bekom	
Name	IP address	Serial No.	Eind
Server1262	192.168.1.3	1262	- and a second
			Tocase



5 Setting Up Multi-Host

In this chapter we explain how to set up NPort Server Pro for Multi-Host Mode. This type of application uses more than one host on a local network to control several serial port devices.

We cover the following topics:

- Driver and Software Installation
- Using NPort Pro Manager
 - Saving Your Configuration
 - Adding an NPort Server Pro-Add Server Wizard
 - Deleting a Server
 - Modifying COM Name Mappings
 - Change All COM Names Consecutively
 - Change the COM Name of One Port
 - Un-Mapping a Port
 - Upgrading NPort Server Pro Firmware
 - Configuring Server Properties
 - Server Properties—General
 - Server Properties—Password
 - Server Properties—Transmission

- Access Control
 - Configuring Through View by IP
 - Adding Access Permission of One Host
 - Modifying the Host Settings
 - Removing Ports from a Granted Host
 - Removing a Granted Host
 - Configuring Through View by Port
 - > Adding a Host IP Address to a Specific Port
 - Modifying a Granted Host
 - Removing Granted Host



Figure 5-1. Application with three hosts and two NPort Server Pros.

Note: If you need to set up Single-Host Mode or Custom Mode, refer to Chapters 4 and 6, respectively, for complete descriptions of these types of application.

Driver and Software Installation

1. Insert the NPort Server Pro disk into either the floppy disk drive or CD ROM drive, depending on the type of disk that was provided.

From the Windows NT/95/98 desktop, click on Start and then choose Run.



2. Type IA:\setup in the **Open** input box if using drive A and then click **OK** (replace A with the correct drive letter if you are using a different drive).



3. The Welcome to NPort Server Pro window opens, giving you the option to continue with the installation process. Click on Next to continue.



4. When the Setup Wizard window opens, choose Multi-Host, and then click on Next to continue.

Setup Wizard	×		
Select your type of installation:			
C Single-Host	Provides "single host to multiple NPort Server Pro" operation mode.		
Multi-Host	Provides "Multiple host to multiple NPort Server Pro" operation mode.		
C Custom	Provides "Multiple host to multiple NPort Server Pro" operation mode and "inter-network" connection.		
	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > <u>C</u> ancel		

5. The Select Destination Directory window gives you the option to change the directory which program files will be copied to. Click on Next to copy NPort Server Pro files to the given default directory. To choose a different directory, click on Browse, navigate to the desired directory, and then click on Next.



6. The **Installing** window shows the progress of the installation process. Click on **Cancel** at any time to terminate the installation.

Installing		×
Copying file: D:\Program F	ïles\NPort\ManView.exe	
	43%	
	Cancel	

7. The next window verifies that the installation process has completed. Click on **Next** to continue.



Note: If you click on **Cancel** you will need to run Add Server Wizard at a later time to install your NPort Server Pro.

8. Clicking on Next in the previous window activates the Add Server Wizard.

Refer to the subsection Adding an NPort Server Pro-Add Server Wizard in the next section for instructions on how to add an NPort Server Pro.

Using NPort Pro Manager

When you run the Setup program to install NPort Server Pro software, you are given the option to run the Add Server Wizard. However, you may run NPort Pro Manager at a later time if you decide to add more servers, change server names, remove servers, or change COM names. To start NPort Pro Manager, click on:

Start \rightarrow Programs \rightarrow NPort Server Pro \rightarrow NPort Pro Manager.



This activates the NPort Pro Manager main window, shown below, with server names and model numbers displayed in the left info box. When a particular NPort Server Pro is highlighted, the ports associated with that server, the associated COM port names, and other relevant information, are shown in the right info box.

NPort Pro Manager functions can be selected from either the main menu or the toolbar. As shown below, functions related to servers are listed under the **Server** menu, and port functions are under the **Port** menu. Moreover, when you use the right mouse button to click on a port or server, a window with a list of functions available for the selected item opens up. If you forget the function associated with a particular icon, position the mouse pointer over the icon. This will cause a message window containing the name of the function to pop up.



Figure 5-2. NPort Manager and the menus.

Saving Your Configuration



Modifications of NPort Server Pro, or changes to port configurations, must be saved in order to be activated. Choose **Save Configuration** from the **Server** menu, or click on the toolbar **Save all Servers** icon to automatically detect any changes and save them in the appropriate places.



Adding an NPort Server Pro-Add Server Wizard

The Add Server Wizard is activated automatically during the driver and software installation procedure. If you need to add another NPort Server Pro to your system at a later time, run NPort Pro Manager, and then choose **Add Server Wizard** from the Servers menu, or click on the toolbar **Add Server** button.

1. Select Yes and then click on Next to continue the installation process.



2. If the NPort Server Pro you wish to add is listed in the Add Server Wizard window, use the mouse to highlight the server **Model** and then click on **Next** to continue.

Mult-Host	Seed the server han the ist below. It you cannot find the server in the list, check you agree connection and power cost, and then clok on "Find".
	 No.1 will define the server receil. IP Select excling #Port Servers on the setwak.
X	Nodel Name Paddecc Secult COLD Serve \$2290 1321681072. \$230
	Find. Lacide Server

Note: If the server you want to add is not listed in the above window, you will receive the warning window shown below. Check to make sure that the power cord is connected, and the power switch is in the "on" position. Click **OK** to return to the window shown above, and then click **Find**. The new server should now be listed as shown above.



Note: If you have several servers hooked up to your network, and it's not clear which server is the one you are currently adding, click on **Locate** in the **Add Server Wizard** window shown in step 2 above. The "Ready" LED on the listed server will start blinking, allowing you to identify it.

Add Server Wizard	×
Locate Server	
Name : Server52260 IP address : 192.168.127.254 Serial No : 52280	
You may locate the server with LED blinking now.	
Please find -Blinking S1 for DE-309 -Blinking READY for DE-303 or DE-308.	
Press OK to exit	
[[]	

3. If you are the system administrator and know the current password, or if you are setting up a new password, select **Yes**, **I am the administrator** and then enter the password in the text input box.

If you select **No, I am a general user**, you will be allowed to install your NPort Server Pro, but you will not be able to change any of the parameter settings. Click on **Next** to continue.



4. The next window lists NPort Server Pro's current IP address. Change the number if needed, and then click on **Next** to continue.

Add Server Wizard	
Welcome to <i>NPort</i> Server Pro	NPort Server IP address Enter a desired IP address below or click Next to use the current one. Server IP address: 192.168.127.254
www.moxa.com	
	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > Cancel

 Select the COM port name that you would like the first port on the server to map to. This will add all of NPort Server Pro's ports (8 or 16, depending on the server model number) to your NT/95/98 system, using consecutively numbered COM names. Click on Next to continue.

Setting Up Multi-Host



6. When the **Complete!** window opens, check the information to make sure that everything is correct, and then click on **Finish** to continue.



7. This evokes the NPort Pro Manager program, with the newly installed server listed.

🖷 NPort Pro Manager - Multi-Host	
<u>S</u> erver <u>P</u> ort <u>H</u> elp	
╘╘╧╧┚╝╧	- ?
P-= NPort Server ServerPro52260(DE-303)	

8. Click on the server name to highlight it. Basic information about the server's COM ports will be listed in the right info box.

📹 NPort Pro Manager - Multi-Host			
<u>S</u> erver <u>P</u> ort <u>H</u> elp			
844998	2		
- 🖅 NPort Server	Port	COM	Status
ServerPro52260(DE-303)	p> 1	COM3	Available
	D 2	COM4	Available
	(2) 3	COM5	Available
	i 🖓 4	COM6	Available
	i 🔊 5	COM7	Available
	l 🔊 6	COM8	Available
	i 🖓 7	COM9	Available
	i 🔅 8	COM10	Available
	l 🔊 9	COM11	Available
	i 🔊 10	COM12	Available
	l 🖓 11	COM13	Available
	😥 12	COM14	Available
	🔊 13	COM15	Available
	i 🔊 14	COM16	Available
	😥 15	COM17	Available
	🗘 16	COM18	Available
	•		Þ
Ready			



- Note: If you see ports with status 'Non-authorized', and you are a general user, be sure to ask your server administrator to add access permission so that you may make modifications to the server.
- lpha Note: The NPort Pro Manager title bar shows the application mode of the newly installed server-Multi-Host in this case.
 - 9. To add another server, choose Add Server Wizard from the Server menu, or click on the toolbar Add Server icon, and then repeat the above steps.
 - 10. Before exiting NPort Pro Manger you should save the new configuration. Choose Save Configuration from the Server menu, or click on the toolbar Save all Servers icon to carry this out.
 - 11. Exit NPort Pro Manager when you finish.

Deleting a Server



If for some reason you need to delete a server from your system, click on the server name to highlight it, and then choose **Delete Server** from the **Server** menu, or click on the toolbar **Delete Server** icon. A warning window will pop up asking if you really want to delete the server. Click **OK** to delete.

Modifying COM Name Mappings



You may use NPort Pro Manager to change previously assigned COM names. Choose **Map Port** from the **Port** menu, or click on the toolbar **Map Port** icon. You will be asked to choose from two options. You may change the name of all servers simultaneously, provided you want the COM port numbers to be consecutive, or, you may change the names one port at a time. The procedure is as follows:

Change All COM Names Consecutively:

- **1.** Click on the server name whose port names you would like to modify.
- 2. Click on port 1 in the right info box.
- 3. Choose Map Port from the Port menu, or click on the toolbar Map Port icon to activate the function.
- 4. Select the COM name that the first port will be mapped to.
- 5. Check the Mapping COM number consecutively box.
- 6. Click **OK** to activate the change.

Changing the COM Name of One Port

- 1. Click on the server name whose port name you would like to modify.
- **2.** Click on the port, in the right info box, you would like to modify.



Map Port 🔉	<
Port 1 at ServerPro52260	
Select the COM port that you would like current port to map to.	
Map to : COM3	
Mapping COM number consecutively	
OK Cancel	

- Choose Map Port from the Port menu, or click on the toolbar Map Port icon to 3. activate the function.
- 4. Select the COM name that the port will be mapped to.
- 5. Click OK to activate the change.

Un-Mapping a Port



If you do not need to use a port any more, you may use the UnMap Portfunction to remove it from your Windows NT/95/98 operating system.

Click on the port (in the right info box) that you 1. want to remove.

y

Choose UnMap Port from the Port menu, or click 2. on the toolbar Unmap Port icon

i	7

Note: The screen at the right shows the display after un-mapping ports 3 and 5.

Upgrading NPort Server Pro Firmware

|--|

СОМ

СОМЗ

COM4

соме

COM8

COM9

COM10 COM11

Port

1

66

ø

0000

Status

Available

Available

Available Available

Available

Available

Available

Available

Available

Moxa continually upgrades its driver software and	Server Port Help	
server firmware to keep pace with the ever-	Save Configuration	
expanding world of computing. You can use the		
Upgrade function located on NPort Pro	Add Server Wizard	
Manager's toolbar to carry out the upgrade	<u>D</u> elete Server	
procedure. Access Moxa's Web site at	Server <u>P</u> roperties	
www.moxa.com to download the required	<u>Replace</u> Server	
computer file (contact our sales department if you	Upgrade	
need assistance with this), and then follow these	opgrade	
instructions.	E <u>x</u> it	

- Stop all port action related to the server you are upgrading. 1.
- Choose Upgrade Server from the Server menu, or click on the toolbar Upgrade icon. 2.
- 3. Locate and then select the filename of the firmware that you downloaded.

5-14 NPort Server Pro User's Manual

- 4. Click on **Open** and then wait until you see an "upgrade completed" message. The server will restart automatically.
- Note: When using this procedure, only the selected server's firmware is upgraded. If you know that new NPort Pro Manager software has been released, it is recommended that you uninstall the old NPort Pro Manager program from your NT/95/98 host's hard drive, and then install the new one.

Configuring Server Properties



The Server Properties function can be used to change the server's name, password, and transmission parameters. Choose **Server Properties** from the **Server** menu, or click on the toolbar **Server Properties** icon to start the function.

Server Properties-General

You may modify the Server Name, Server IP, and Netmask by using the toolbar Properties function.

- 1. Select the General tab in the Server Properties window.
- 2. Modify the Server Name, Server IP, and Netmask, as needed.
- 3. Select Enable or Disable, for DHCP, depending on whether or not you are using a DHCP server.

Server Properties			×
General Password Transm	nission Access C	Control	
Server Info			
Serial No :	52280		
Server Name :	Server52260		
Server IP	192.168.127.2	254	
Netmask :	255.255.0.0		
DHCP :	© Enable	☞ Disable	
		0	K Cancel

Server Properties-Password

To add more security to your NPort Server Pro, it is highly recommended that you set a password as soon as you complete the installation. If you did not set the password while running Add Server Wizard, or you would like to change the current password, you may use the toolbar Properties function to do so.

You may also use this function to "Auto-Save", i.e., to have Windows NT/95/98 remember your password for you. By auto saving the password, you will not be asked to enter the password when modifying server properties from this computer.



Note: Keep in mind that other people using your computer will also have ready access to the NPort Pro Manager functions.

Steps for configuring the server's password:

- Select the **Password** tab in the 1. Server Properties window.
- 2. Enter the current password and new password as indicated.
- 3. Check the Auto Save Password on this computer box if you want Windows NT/95/98 to remember your password.

Note: If you do not check the Auto Save Password on this computer box, you will need to enter the correct password each time you want to view Server Properties.

Server Properties	×
General Password Transmission Access Control	
Auto Save Password on this computer	
Change Password	
Current Server Password :	
New Password :	
Confirm New Password :	
OK Cancel	1

Server Properties-Transmission

The Transmission page allows the user to set the **Transmission Mode** and **Tx FIFO** options for each of NPort Server Pro's ports.

Transmission Mode

Select **Hi-Performance** to use buffering technology to accelerate data writing. This allows your communication software to reach maximum data throughput when transmitting large amounts of data. The driver will notify the user that the transmission is completed when the output data length is lower than the LOW WATER setting.

General Pa	assword Tra	ansmission Access C	ontrol		
Port No. 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	COM No. COM3 COM4 COM5 COM5 COM7 COM8 COM9 COM10 COM10 COM11 COM12 COM13	Transmission Mode Hi-Parformance Hi-Parformance Hi-Parformance Hi-Parformance Hi-Parformance Hi-Parformance Hi-Parformance Hi-Parformance Hi-Parformance Hi-Parformance	Tx FIFO Enable Enable Enable Enable Enable Enable Enable Enable Enable Enable	Port No. : 1 Transmission Mode — © Hi-Performance © Classical TxFIFO © Enable © Disable	
				OK Cancel	

Classical Mode lets the port behave like a generic COM port. Transmission of small data packets is more precise and reliable. In this case, the driver will notify the user that the transmission is complete when all data has been transmitted.

Tx FIFO

Set to **Enable** to the get the best performance from the board.

Set to **Disable** to avoid data loss when communicating with plain communication devices using S/W flow control. In this case only one byte will be put into the UART when the FIFO is empty.

Access Control

It is possible to assign access permission to hosts to allow them access to the ports on a shared NPort Server Pro. For security reasons, the access control list can only be defined by the server's administrator. If you have not been granted access to a port, you will see a screen with the message 'Non-authorized' for that port.

After running Add Server Wizard and typing in your password showing that you are the administrator, you are granted access to the server you have added. You may go to server properties to check that. However, if you did not enter the conect password, you can still map the ports to your NT/95/98, but you will not have access to the ports. You will need to ask your administrator to add your IP address to the access control list of the server to grant you access. If you are not sure of the IP address of the host you want to add, run 'ipconfig' from the host's NT/95/98 MSDOS prompt.

Note: If you empty the access control list, then by default, only the connecting host's IP address is granted.

- 1. Select the Access Control tab.
- 2. The screen will show a list of ports, and two methods of adding permission.

Server Properties	×
General Password Transmission Access Control	,
View access control list by : Port	
Port	
GerverPro52260(192.168.127.254) ▲	Add IP
⊕ Port 1	
. Port 3	Add Port
	Para and
	<u>Hellove</u>
. En Port 7	
. Port 8	Modifu
Port 9	111, 3 40 y
	OK Cancel

Note: When adding access permission, you may either view the access control list by **Port**, or by **IP address**. These two approaches also apply to the procedure for adding new hosts. The next two sections describe how to add hosts using both approaches.

Configuring Through View by IP

Using the view access control list by IP address option displays the access control list by listing server IP addresses. It will be clear which IP addresses have been granted access to which ports, and which IP addresses are allowed onto the server:

Adding Access Permission of One Host

If a particular host is permitted access to all ports on a specific server, we recommend that you configure using the view access control list by IP address option.

1. Click on the Access Control tab, and then select the IP address option next to View access control list by:

2. Click on the server you would like to modify.

Server Properties	×
General Password Transmission Access Control	
View access control list by : IP address	
ServerPro52260(192.168.127.254)	Add IP

- 3. Click on Add IP to open the Grant Access IP window.
- 4. To add access for only one computer, select **a single computer**, and then enter the host's IP address in the appropriate text box.

To add access for a group of computers, select **a group of computer**, and then enter the **IP address** and **netmask**. (E.g., for network class C computers, you might enter 192.168.1.0 for **IP address** and then 255.255.255.0 for **netmask**.)

Grant Access IF	× ×	Grant Access IP	×
Server Name :	ServerPro52260	Server Name : ServerPro52260	
⊙ a single c ⊂ a group o	omputer f computer	C a single computer a group of computer	
IP address :	192.168.1.100	IP address : 192.168.1.0	
Netmask :	255.255.255.255	Netmask : 255.255.255.0	
	OK Cancel	OK Cance	:

5. Click OK.

6. When the Add Port window opens up, highlight the port(s) that the host will be granted access to.

Note: You can select blocks of ports by holding down the left mouse button while scrolling through the list of ports.



7. Click OK to finish and return to the Access Control page.

Server Properties		×
General Password Transmission Access Control		
View access control list by : IP address		
ServerPro52260(192.168.127.254)	Add IP	
I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I		
Port 2	Add Port	
Port 3		
- Port 5	<u>R</u> emove	
Port 6		
Port 8	Modily	
	ОК	Cancel

The ports granted access to will be listed under the host' s IP address.
 Click OK to finish, and then choose Save Configuration to activate the settings.

Modifying the Host Settings

- 1. Select the IP address of the host you would like to modify.
- 2. Click on the **Modify** button.



- **3.** Modify the configuration as desired.
- 4. Click **OK** to exit.

Removing Ports from a Granted Host

- 1. Select the IP address of the host you would like to modify.
- 2. Click on the **Port** that you would like to remove from the list.

Server Properties	×
General Password Transmission Access Control	
View access control list by : IP address	
GerverPro52260(192.168.127.254)	Add IP
	Add Part
Port 2	Addroit
Port 4 Port 5	<u>R</u> emove
Port 6 Port 7	54 BY
- Port 8	Modiy
	OK Cancel

3. Click on **Remove**, and then click **OK** to exit. As you can see from the window shown below, Port 3 has been removed from the host's access control.

Server Properties	×
General Password Transmission Access Control	
View access control list by : IP address	
ServerPro52260(192.168.127.254)	Add IP
Port 1	
Port 2	Add Port
- Port 5	Benove
Port 6 Port 7	Tellove
- Port 8	Modify
i im Port 9	
	OK Cancel

Removing a Granted Host

If you do not allow a particular host to use any of the ports, simply remove the host from the list.

Note: If you empty the access control list, then by default, only the connecting host's IP address is granted.

1. Click on the host's IP address to highlight it.

Server Properties	×
General Password Transmission Access Control	
View access control list by : IP address	
GerverPro52260(192.168.127.254) ▲	Add IP
□-192.168.1.0 255.255.255.0 Port 1	
Port 2	Add Port
Port 3	Daman 1
Port 5	<u>Hemove</u>
- Port 7	Modify
Port 8	
	OK Cancel

2. Click on the **Remove** button, and then click **OK** to exit.

Configuring Through View by Port

By choosing the option View access control list by Port, it is easy to see the access permission granted for each port. This viewing option is particularly useful for adding hosts to specific ports.

Adding a Host IP Address to a Specific Port

1. Click on the Port you would like to add a host to.

View encourse and collisis for	
Them eccless connecting by	2
ServerProf22260[152.168.127.254]	AddIP
Pot 2	
Port 3	with other
Pot 4	
Polit 5	Lenne
Pot 7	
- Poet B	9000
Pot 9	2

- 2. Click on Add IP.
- **3.** To add access for only one computer, select **a single computer**, and then enter the host' s IP address in the appropriate text box.

To add access for a group of computers, select **a group of computers,** and then enter the **IP address** and **netmask**. (E.g., for network class C computers, you might enter 192.168.1.0 for **IP address**, and then 255.255.255.0 for **netmask**.)

Grant Access IP 🛛	Grant Access IP
Server Name : ServerPro52260 Port 3	Server Name : ServerPro52260 Port 3
 a single computer a group of computer 	 a single computer a group of computer
IP address : 192.168.1.100	IP address : 192.168.1.0
Netmask :	Netmask : 255.255.0
0K Cancel	OK Cancel

4. Click **OK** to finish.

- Server Properties х General Password Transmission Access Control View access control list by : Port -⊡- ServerPro52260(192.168.127.254) Add IP Port 1 Port 2 Ė Port 3 192.168.1.0 255.255.255.0 Port 4 Port 5 Port 6 Port 7 • Port 8 ΟK Cancel
- 5. When the Server Properties window opens up, you can look at the Access Control page to verify that the host was added to the port.

6. Click OK to finish.

Modifying a Granted Host

- 1. Click on the port whose host you would like to modify.
- 2. Click on the IP address you want to change, and then click on Modify.

Server Properties		×
General Password Transmission Access Control		
View access control list by : Port		
ServerPro52260(192.168.127.254) ▲	Add IP	
- Port 1		
- Port 2	1	
i⊟- Port 3	Add Port	
192.168.1.0 255.255.255.0		
- Port 4	Deserve	
Port 5	<u>– Hemove</u>	
Port 6		
Port 7	Modify	
Port 8		
	OK Cancel	1

3. Modify the IP address as needed.

5-24 NPort Server Pro User's Manual

Note: The modification will only be valid for this port.

Removing a Granted Host

- 1. Click on the port whose host you would like to remove.
- 2. Click on the IP address you want to delete, and then click on **Remove**.

Server Properties	2
General Password Transmission Access Control	
View access control list by : Port	
	Add IP
- Port 1	
- Port 2	
i⊒ Port 3	Add Port
192.168.1.0 255.255.255.0	
Port 4	Bemove
Port 5	
Port 6	
Port 7	Modify
Port 8	
	OK Cancel

3. Click **OK** to finish.
6 Setting Up Custom

In this chapter we explain how to set up NPort Server Pro for Custom Mode. Custom Mode users can apply NPort Server Pro for multi-port serial applications with remote control or monitoring, and as stand-alone machines connected to serial devices at a remote site.

We cover the following topics:

- Driver and Software Installation
- Using NPort Pro Manager
 - Saving Your Configuration
 - Adding an NPort Server Pro-Add Server Wizard
 - Deleting a Server
 - Modifying COM Name Mappings
 - Change All COM Names Consecutively
 - Change the COM Name of One Port
 - Un-Mapping a Port
 - Upgrading NPort Server Pro Firmware
 - Configuring Server Properties
 - Server Properties—General
 - Server Properties—Password
 - Server Properties—Transmission

- Access Control
 - Configuring Through View by IP
 - Adding Access Permission of One Host
 - Modifying the Host Settings
 - Removing Ports from a Granted Host
 - Removing a Granted Host
 - Configuring Through View by Port
 - Adding a Host IP Address to a Specific Port
 - Modifying a Granted Host
 - Removing a Granted Host
- □ Adding Routes to NPort Server Pro
 - Adding Routes Through Server Properties
 - Modifying Routes
 - Removing Routes
 - Examples of Internet/Intranet Routing Configurations
 - Configuring Router for Internet Connection
 - > Configuring Router for One Internet and One Intranet Connection



Figure 6-1. A remote control link diagram

Note: If you need to set up Single-Host Mode or Multi-Host Mode, refer to Chapters 4 and 5, respectively, for complete descriptions of these types of application.

Driver and Software Installation

1. Insert the NPort Server Pro disk into either the floppy disk drive or CD ROM drive, depending on the type of disk that was provided.

From the Windows NT/95/98 desktop, click on Start and then choose Run.



2. Type IA:\setup in the **Open** input box if using drive A and then click **OK** (replace A with the correct drive letter if you are using a different drive).



3. The **Welcome to NPort Server Pro** window opens, giving you the option to continue with the installation process. Click on **Next** to continue.

NPort S	erver Pro Setup for
Window	VSNT Welcome to NPort Server Pro
Ф	This setup program will install the software for Moxa NPort Server Pro to your workstation. Click on the Cancel button now if your do not want to continue setting up Moxa NPort Server Pro at this time.
9	Cancel
10 - Al	
Moxa Techno	All rights reserved. WWW.MOXA.COM

4. When the Setup Wizard window opens, choose Custom, and then click on Next to continue.

Setup Wizard	X
Select your type	of installation:
○ Single-Host	Provides "single host to multiple NPort Server Pro" operation mode.
O Multi-Host	Provides "Multiple host to multiple NPort Server Pro" operation mode.
Custom	Provides "Multiple host to multiple NPort Server Pro" operation mode and "inter-network" connection.
	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > <u>C</u> ancel

5. The Select Destination Directory window gives you the option to change the directory that program files will be copied to. Click on Next to copy NPort Server Pro files to the given default directory. To choose a different directory, click on Browse, navigate to the desired directory, and then click on Next.

The Installing window shows the progress of the installation process. Click on Cancel 6. at any time to terminate the installation.



7. The next window verifies that the installation process has completed. Click on Next to continue.





Note: If you click on **Cancel** you will need to run Add Server Wizard at a later time to install your NPort Server Pro.

8. Clicking on Next in the previous window activates the Add Server Wizard. Refer to the subsection Adding an NPort Server Pro-Add Server Wizard in the next section for instructions on how to add an NPort Server Pro.

Using NPort Pro Manager

When you run the Setup program to install NPort Server Pro software, you are given the option to run the Add Server Wizard. However, you may run NPort Pro Manager at a later time if you decide to add more servers, change server names, remove servers, or change COM names. To start NPort Pro Manager, click on:

Start \rightarrow Programs \rightarrow NPort Server Pro \rightarrow NPort Pro Manager.



This activates the **NPort Pro Manager** main window, shown below, with server names and model numbers displayed in the left info box. When a particular NPort Server Pro is highlighted, the ports associated with that server; the associated COM port names, and other relevant information, are shown in the right info box.

NPort Pro Manager functions can be selected from either the main menu or the toolbar. As shown below, functions related to servers are listed under the **Server** menu, and port functions are under the **Port** menu. Moreover, when you use the right mouse button to click on a port or server, a window with a list of functions available for the selected item opens up. If you forget the function associated with a particular icon, position the mouse pointer over the icon. This will cause a message window containing the name of the function to pop up.



Figure 6-2. NPort Manager and the menus





Modifications of NPort Server Pro, or changes to port configurations, must be saved in order to be activated. Choose **Save Configuration** from the **Server** menu, or click on the toolbar **Save all Servers** icon to automatically detect any changes and save them in the appropriate places.

Adding an NPort Server Pro-Add Server Wizard



The Add Server Wizard is activated automatically during the driver and software installation procedure. If you need to add another NPort Server Pro to your system at a later time, run NPort Pro Manager, and then choose **Add Server Wizard** from the **menu**, or click on the toolbar **Add Server** button.

1. Select Yes and then click on Next to continue the installation process.



2. If the NPort Server Pro you wish to add is listed in the Add Server Wizard window, use the mouse to highlight the server **Model** and then click on **Next** to continue.

Add Server Wizard	×					
Custom	Your NPort Server Pro Select the server from the list below. If you cannot find the server in the list, check your server connection and power cord, and then click on "Find". © No, I will define the server myself.					
	Model Name IP address Serie 0E303 Server52260 132.168.127.254 5228					
	Find Locate Server					

Note: If the server you want to add is not listed in the above window, you will receive the warning window shown below. Check to make sure that the power cord is connected, and the power switch is in the "on" position. Click **OK** to return to the window shown above, and then click on **Find**. The new server should now be listed as shown above.



Note: If you have several servers hooked up to your network, and it's not clear which server is the one you are currently adding, click on **Locate** in the **Add Server Wizard** window shown in step 2 above. The "Ready" LED on the listed server will start blinking, allowing you to identify it.

Add Server Wizard	×
Locate Server	
Name : Server52260 IP address : 192.168.127.254 Serial No : 52280	
You may locate the server with LED blinking now.	
Please find -Blinking S1 for DE-309 -Blinking READY for DE-303 or DE-308.	
Press OK to exit	
<u> </u>	

3. If you are the system administrator and know the current password, or if you are setting up a new password, select **Yes**, **I am the administrator** and then enter the password in the text input box.

If you select **No**, **I** am a general user, you will be allowed to install your NPort Server Pro, but you will not be able to change any of the parameter settings Click on **Next** to continue.

Setting Up Custom



4. The next window lists the NPort Server Pro's current IP address. Change the number if needed, and then click on **Next** to continue.

Add Server Wizard	
Welcome to <i>NPort</i> Server Pro	NPort Server IP address Enter a desired IP address below or click Next to use the current one.
www.moxa.com	Server IP address: 132.168.127.294
	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > Cancel

 Select the COM port name that you would like the first port on the server to map to. This will add all of NPort Server Pro's ports (8 or 16, depending on the server model number) to your NT/95/98 system, using consecutively numbered COM names. Click on Next to continue.



6. When the **Complete!** window opens, check the information to make sure that everything is correct, and then click on **Finish** to continue.

Add Server Wizard	
Welcome to <i>XPort</i> Server Pro	Completel You have finished adding the following server to NPort Manager. If the information is correct, click on Finish to save these settings. Model : DE-303 Server Name : ServerPro522500 Ports : CDM3-CDM18 Server Serial Number : 52260 Server IP : 192.168.127.254
www.moxa.com	
	< <u>B</u> ack Finish Cancel

7. This evokes the **NPort Pro Manager** program, with the newly installed server listed.

🔚 NPort Pro Manager - Custom	_ 🗆 🗡
<u>S</u> erver <u>P</u> ort <u>H</u> elp	
₩ # <i>₹₹₹</i>	

6-12 NPort Server Pro User's Manual



Click on the server name to highlight it. Basic information about the server's COM 8. ports will be listed in the right info box.

 \bigstar Note: If you see ports with the status 'Non-authorized', and you are a general user, be sure to ask your server administrator to add access permission so that you can make modifications to the server settings.

Note: The NPort Pro Manager title bar shows the application mode of the newly installed server-Custom in this case.

- 9. To add another server, choose Add Server Wizard from the Server menu, or click on the toolbar Add Server icon, and then repeat the above steps.
- 10. Before exiting NPort Pro Manger you should save the new configuration. Choose Save Configuration from the Server menu, or click on the toolbar Save all Servers icon to carry this out.
- 11. Exit NPort Pro Manager when you finish.

Deleting a Server



If for some reason you need to delete a server from your system, click on the server name to highlight it, and then choose Delete Server from the Server menu, or click on the toolbar Delete Server icon. A warning window will pop up asking if you really want to delete the server. Click OK to delete.

Modifying COM Name Mappings



You may use NPort Pro Manager to change previously assigned COM names. Choose **Map Port** from the **Port** menu, or click on the toolbar **Map Port**icon. You will be asked to choose from two options. You may change the name of all servers simultaneously, provided you want the COM port numbers to be consecutive, or, you may change the names one port at a time. The procedure is as follows:

Change All COM Names Consecutively:

- 1. Click on the server name whose port names you would like to modify.
- 2. Click on port 1 in the right info box.
- 3. Choose Map Port from the Port menu, or click on the toolbar Map Port icon to activate the function.
- 4. Select the COM name that the first port will be mapped to.
- 5. Check the Mapping COM number consecutively box.
- 6. Click **OK** to activate the change.

Change the COM Name of One Port

- 1. Click on the server name whose port name you would like to modify.
- 2. Click on the port, in the right info box, you would like to modify.
- 3. Choose Map Port from the Port menu, or click on the toolbar Map Port icon to activate the function.
- 4. Select the COM name that the port will be mapped to.
- 5. Click **OK** to activate the change.

ap Port 🛛 🗙
Port 1 at ServerPro52260
Select the COM port that you would like current port to map to.
Map to : COM3
Mapping COM number consecutively
OK Cancel

Map Port 🗙	1
Port 1 at ServerPro52260	
Select the COM port that you would like current port to map to.	
Map to : COM3	
Mapping COM number consecutively	
OK Cancel	

Setting Up Custom

Un-Mapping a Port



If you do not need to use a port any more, you may use the **UnMap Port** function to remove it from your Windows NT/95/98 operating system.

- 1. Click on the port (in the right info box) that you want to remove.
- 2. Choose UnMap Port from the Port menu, or click on the toolbar Unmap Port icon

Note:	The	screet	n at the	right	shows	the	display	,
a	fter	un-ma	nning	ports	3 and 3	5.		

Upgrading NPort Server Pro Firmware

Moxa continually upgrades its driver software and server firmware to keep pace with the ever-expanding world of computing. You can use the **Upgrade** function located on NPort Pro Manager's stoolbar to carry out the upgrade procedure. Access Moxa's Web site at<u>www.moxa.com</u> to download the required computer file (contact our sales department if you need assistance with this), and then follow these instructions.

- 1. Stop all port action related to the server you are upgrading.
- 2. Choose Upgrade Server from the Server menu, or click on the toolbar Upgrade icon.
- 3. Locate and then select the filename of the firmware that you downloaded

Open					?	×
Look jn:	🔄 downloads	•		5-6- 5-6- 5-6-		
nppro303.	rom					1
File <u>n</u> ame:	nppro303.rom			<u>0</u> pe	n	1
Files of type:			•	Cano	el :	

Click on **Open** and then wait until you see an "upgrade completed" message. The server will restart automatically.



<u>S</u> erver	Port	<u>H</u> elp	8
<u>S</u> ave	Config	juration	
Add 9	erver	Wizard	
Delete	e Serv	er	
Serve	r <u>P</u> rop	erties	
<u>R</u> epla	ice Se	rver	
Upgra	ide		
E <u>x</u> it			



lacksim N ote: When using this procedure, only the selected server's firmware is upgraded. If you know that new NPort Pro Manager software has been released, it is recommended that you uninstall the old NPort Pro Manager program from your NT/95/98 host's hard drive, and then install the new one.

Configuring Server Properties



The Server Properties function can be used to change the server's name, password, and

transmission parameters. Choose Server Properties from the Server menu, or click on the toolbar Server Properties icon to start the function.

Server Properties-General

You may modify the Server Name, Server IP, and Netmask by using the toolbar Properties function.

- Select the General tab in the 1. Server Properties window.
- Modify the Server Name, Server 2. IP, and Netmask, as needed.
- Server Properties General Password Transmission Access Control Advanced Server Info Serial No 52280 Server52260 Server Name 192.168.127.254 Server IP 255,255,0.0 Netmask Enable DHCP O Disable OK Cancel
- Select Enable or Disable, for DHCP, depending on whether or not you are using a 3. DHCP server.

Server Properties–Password

To add more security to your NPort Server Pro, it is highly recommended that you set a password as soon as you complete the installation. If you did not set the password while running Add Server Wizard, or you would like to change the current password, you may use the toolbar Properties function to do so.

You may also use this function to "Auto-Save", i.e., to have Windows NT/95/98 remember your password for you. By auto saving the password, you will not be asked to enter the password when modifying server properties from this computer.

lpha Note: Keep in mind that other people using your computer will also have ready access to the NPort Pro Manager functions.

Steps for configuring the server's password:

- 1. Select the **Password** tab in the **Server Properties** window.
- 2. Enter the current password and new password as indicated.
- 3. Check the Auto Save Password on this computer box if you want Windows NT/95/98 to remember your password.

Note: If you do not check the **Auto Save Password on this computer** box, you will need to enter the correct password each time you want to view Server Properties.

erver Properties	D
General Paroward Transmission Access Control Adva	d]
C Auto Save Password on this computer	
Change Password	
Current Server Pasawood :	
New Parswold :	
Confirm New Paravoord :	
	DK Cancel

Server Properties-Transmission

The Transmission page allows the user to set the **Transmission Mode** and **TxFIFO** options for each of NPort Server Pro's ports.

Transmission Mode

Por No.	COM No.	Transmission Mode	THEFT		Port No. : 1
1	сома	HiPeforsance	Enable		-Transmission Mode
2	CDM4	HiPefornance	Enable		G HID-
	COME	HAPPerformance	Enable		C
ŝ	CDM7	Hi-Performance	Enable		C Clanical
6	CDMB	Hi/Petomance	Enable		
7	COM9	HiPeforsance	Enable		TxAFD
8	COMIO	HiPefornance	Enable		C Enable
3	COMPT	He ^r eformance	Enable		C Divisio
11	CRM12	Hi-Patranence	Enable	*	· Disable

Select Hi-Performance to use buffering technology to accelerate data writing. This allows your

communication software to reach maximum data throughput when transmitting large amounts of data. The driver will notify the user that the transmission is completed when the output data length is lower than the LOW WATER setting.

Classical Mode lets the port behave like a generic COM port. Transmission of small data packets is more precise and reliable. In this case, the driver will notify the user that the transmission is complete when all data has been transmitted.

Tx FIFO

Set to Enable to the get the best performance from the board.

Set to **Disable** to avoid data loss when communicating with plain communication devices using SW flow control. In this case only one byte will be put into the UART when the FIFO is empty.

Access Control

It is possible to assign access permission to hosts to allow them access to the ports on a shared NPort Server Pro. For security reasons, the access control list can only be defined by the server's administrator. If you have not been granted access to a port, you will see a screen with the message 'Non-authorized' for that port.

After running Add Server Wizard and typing in your password showing that you are the administrator, you are granted access to the server you have added. You may go to server properties to check that. However, if you did not enter the correct password, you can still map the ports to your NT, but you will not have access to the ports. You will need to ask your administrator to add your IP address to the access control list of the server to grant you access. If you are not sure of the IP address of the host you want to add, run 'ipconfig' from the host's NT MSDOS prompt.



- 1. Select the Access Control tab.
- 2. The screen will show a list of **ports**, and two methods of adding permission.

Server Properties	×
General Password Transmission Access Control Ac	dvanced
View access control list by : IP address Fort	
ServerPro52260(192.168.127.254)	Add IP
	Add Port
	<u>R</u> emove
	Modify
	OK Cancel

6-18 NPort Server Pro User's Manual

Note: When adding access permission, you may either view the access control list by **Port**, or by **IP address**. These two approaches also apply to the procedure for adding new hosts. The next two sections describe how to add hosts using both approaches.

Configuring Through View by IP

Using the view access control list by IP address option displays the access control list by giving the server IP addresses. It is clear to see which IP addresses have been granted access to which ports, and which IP addresses are allowed onto the server.

Adding Access Permission of One Host

If a particular host is permitted access to all ports on a specific server, we recommend that you configure using the view access control list by IP address option.

- 1. Click on the Access Control tab, and then select the IP address option next to View access control list by:
- 2. Click on the Server you would like to modify.

Server Properties	×
General Password Transmission Access C	ontrol Advanced
View access control list by : IP addre	22
ServerPro52260(192.168.127.254)	Add IP

- 3. Click on Add IP to open the Grant Access IP window.
- 4. To add access for only one computer, select **a single computer**, and then enter the host' s IP address in the appropriate text box.

To add access for a group of computers, select a **group of computer**, and then enter the IP address and netmask. (E.g., for network class C computers, you might enter 192.168.1.0 for IP address and then 255.255.255.0 for netmask.)

Grant Access IP	Grant Access IP
Server Name : ServerPro52260	Server Name : ServerPro52260
 a single computer a group of computer 	 ○ a single computer ⊙ a group of computer
IP address : 192.168.1.100	IP address : 192.168.1.0
Netmask : 255.255.255.255	Netmask : 255,255,255,0
OK Cancel	OK Cancel

- 5. Click OK.
- 6. When the Add Port window opens up, highlight the port(s) that the host will be granted access to.

Note: You can select blocks of ports by holding down the left mouse button while scolling through the list of ports.

ld Port		
IP address :	192.168.1.0]
Select from t	he ports below to add access o current host.	
Port 1		
Port 2 Port 3 Port 4		OK
Port 5 Port 6		Cancel
D - + 7		

7. Click OK to finish, and return to the Access Control page.



The ports granted access to will be listed under the host's IP address.
 Click OK to finish, and the choose Save Configuration to activate the settings.

Modifying the Host Settings

- 1. Select the IP address of the host you would like to modify.
- 2. Click on the **Modify** button.

Server Properties		X
General Password Transmission Access Control Adv.	anced	1
View access control list by : IP address		
GerverPro52260(192.168.127.254)	Add IP	
Port 1 Port 2 Port 3	Add Port	
Port 4 Port 5	<u>R</u> emove	
Port 6 Port 7 Port 8	<u>M</u> odify	
	ОК	Cancel

- **3.** Modify the configuration as desired.
- 4. Click **OK** to exit.

Removing Ports from a Granted Host

- 1. Select the IP address of the host you would like to modify.
- 2. Click on the Port you would like to remove from the list.

Server Properties General Password Transmission Access Control Adv	anced
View access control list by : IP address	
□- ServerPro52260(192.168.127.254) □- 192.168.1.0 255.255.255.0 □- Port 1 □- Port 2 □Port 3 □- Port 4 □- Port 6 □- Port 7 □- Port 8	Add IP Add Port Bemove Modify
<u> </u>	OK Cancel

3. Click on **Remove**, and then click **OK** to exit. As you can see from the window shown below, Port 3 has been removed from the host's access control.

Server Properties	×
General Password Transmission Access Control Adv	anced
View access control list by : IP address	
□ 192.168.1.0 255.255.255.0 ▲	Add IP
Port 2 Port 4	Add Port
Port 5	<u>B</u> emove
Port 10	Modity
l	
	OK Cancel

6-22 NPort Server Pro User's Manual

Removing a Granted Host

If you do not allow a particular host to use any of the ports, simply remove the host from the list.

- Note: If you empty the access control list, then by default, only the connecting host's IP address is granted.
 - 1. Click on the host's IP address to highlight it.

Server Properties	×
General Password Transmission Access Control Adv	ranced]
View access control list by : IP address	
GerverPro52260(192.168.127.254) ServerPro52260(192.168.127.254)	Add IP
- Port 1 - Port 2	Add Port
- Port 3 - Port 4 - Port 5	<u>R</u> emove
Port 6 Port 7	Modify
I im Port 8	
	OK Cancel

2. Click on the **Remove** button, and then click **OK** to exit.

Configuring Through View by Port

By choosing the option View access control list by Port, it is easy to see the access permission granted for each port. This viewing option is particularly useful for adding hosts to specific ports.

Adding a Host IP Address to a Specific Port

1. Click on the Port you would like to add a host to.

Server Properties		×
General Password Transmission Access Control Adv	anced	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
View access control list by : Port		
	Add IP	
⊕ Port 1	/	
⊡-Port 2	Add Port	
H-Fort 3	Addition	
The Port 5		
	<u>R</u> emove	
⊕ Port 7		
E Port 8	<u>M</u> odify	
I III Port 9		
	ОК	Cancel

2. Click on Add IP.

3. To add access for only one computer, select **a single computer**, and then enter the host's IP address in the appropriate text box.

To add access for a group of computers, select **a group of computer**, and then enter the **IP address** and **netmask**. (E.g., for network class C computers, you might enter 192.168.1.0 for **IP address**, and then 255.255.255.0 for **netmask**.)

Grant Access IP	Grant Access IP
Server Name : ServerPro52260 Port 3	Server Name : ServerPro52260 Port 3
 a single computer a group of computer 	 a single computer a group of computer
IP address : 192.168.1.100	IP address : 192.168.1.0
Netmask :	Netmask : 255.255.255.0
OK Cancel	OK Cancel

6-24 NPort Server Pro User's Manual

- 4. Click OK to finish.
- 5. When the Server Properties window opens up, you can look at the Access Control page to verify that the host was added to the port.

Server Properties	×
General Password Access Control Advanced	,
View access control list by : Port	
E- Server5001(192.168.10.200)	Add IP
- Port 1 - Port 2 - Fort 3 - 192.168.1.100 255.255.255.255	Add Port
Port 4 Port 5	<u>H</u> emove
Port 6	Modifu
Port 8	<u>mouny</u>
	OK Cancel

6. Click OK to finish.

Modifying a Granted Host

- 1. Click on the port whose host you would like to modify.
- 2. Click on the IP address you want to change, and then click on Modify.

Server Properties		×
General Password Transmission Access Control Adva	anced	
View access control list by : Port		
ErverPro52260(192.168.127.254) ▲	Add IP	
E Port 1		
En Port 3	Add Port	
192.168.1.100 255.255.255.0		
	Bemove	
Port 5 Port 5		
En Port 5	[
Port 8		
		Cancel

3. Modify the IP address as needed.

Note: The modification will only be valid for this port.

Removing a Granted Host

- 1. Click on the port whose host you would like to modify.
- 2. Click on the IP address you want to delete, and then click on Remove.

Server Properties	X
General Password Transmission Access Control Adv.	anced]
View access control list by : Port	
- ServerPro52260(192.168.127.254)	Add IP
terrer Port 1	
Port 2	I
È∽ Port 3	Add Port
192.168.1.100 255.255.255.0	
terrer Port 4	Berraus 1
terrer Port 5	<u><u> </u></u>
in Port 6	
tiener Port 7	Modify
Port 8 Image:	
	OK Cancel

3. Click **OK** to finish.

Adding Routes to NPort Server Pro

To enable access from an Internet/Intranet host, first make sure your NPort Server Pro can be connected through the Internet.

You may add routes into NPort Server Proif your Windows NT/95/98 host is at a remote site. This section lists the steps you should follow to add new routes, including examples you can refer to.

Adding Routes Through Server Properties

1. Select the Advanced tab in the Server Properties window, and then click on Add.

Server Properties
General Password Transmission Access Control Advanced
Enter the IP address and Gateway for your data to route to.
Destination Gateway Netmask Metric
Bemove
Modify
OK Cancel

2. Enter the Destination, Gateway, Netmask and Metric as needed.

ateway Setti	ngs
Destination :	0.0.0.0
Gateway :	203.67.6.254
Netmask :	0.0.0.0
Metric :	1

3. Click **OK** to exit Gateway Settings.

Modifying Routes

- 1. Select the Advanced tab in the Server Properties window.
- 2. Click on the route setting you would like to modify to highlight it.

Server Properties				X
General Password	Transmission Ac	cess Control Adv	anced	
Enter the IP addre	ess and Gateway fo	r your data to route	to.	
Destination	Gateway	Netmask	Metric	I
0.0.0.0	203.67.6.254	0.0.0.0	1 _	
				Permana 1
			-	<u>Heiliove</u>
				Modifu
•				
			OK	Cancel

3. Click on Modify and then make any necessary modifications.

Gateway Settin	ngs	×
Destination :	0.0.0.0	
Gateway :	203.67.6.254	
Netmask :	0.0.0.0	
Metric :	1	
	OK Cancel	

4. Click **OK** to exit Gateway Settings.

Removing Routes

- 1. Select the Advanced tab in the Server Properties window.
- 2. Click on the route setting you would like to remove to highlight it.

Server Properties	1 Transmission Ac	ccess Control Adv	ranced	×
Enter the IP add	Iress and Gateway fo Gateway	r your data to route Netmask	to. Metric	
0.0.0	203.67.6.254	0.0.0.0	1.	Add
				Modify
			ОК	Cancel

3. Click on Remove.

Examples of Internet/Intranet Routing Configurations

Configuring Router for Internet Connection

Some routers have the capability to learn routes automatically. To ensure that your Internet connection will work properly, you can consider adding the routes without RIP protocol. Figure 5-1 shows an example of connecting to the Internet through a Router.



Figure 6-3. Scheme for LAN with NPort Server Pro connecting to the Internet

For the case shown above, you should set up the **Destination**, **Gateway**, **Netmask**, and Metric as shown below:

Se	ver Properties				
G	ieneral Password	Transmission 4	Access Control	Advanced	
	Enter the IP addr	ess and Gateway I	for your data to	route to.	
	Destination	Gateway	Netmask	Metric	[
	0.0.0.0	203.67.6.254	0.0.0.0	1	Add

Configuring Router for One Internet and One Intranet Connection

In the more complex case in which NPort Server Pro connects to both the Internet and Intranet, you will need to add two routes to the server.



Figure 6-4. Scheme for NPort Server Pro connecting to the Intranet and Internet.

If you are under the same environment as shown above but your NPort Server Pro only needs to be accessed by the private network as opposed to the global Internet, then just add the first route to the server. In this case the routing setup is as follows:

Sei	ver Properties				
G	ieneral Password	Transmission Ac	cess Control Ac	lvanced	
	Enter the IP addr	ess and Gateway fo	r your data to rout	e to.	
	Destination	Gateway 203 67 6 252	Netmask 255,255,255,0	Metric 2	Add
	202.03.00.0	203.07.0.232	200.200.200.0	2	

7 Utility Programs

In this chapter we cover the following topics:

- General Firmware Utility
 - Toolbar Functions
 - > NPort Server General Info
 - Search All NPort Servers
 - Connect to an NPort Server Pro
 - Upgrade Firmware
- □ NPort Server Monitor
 - Toolbar Functions
 - Configuring NPort Monitor
 - Save Configuration
 - Load Configuration
 - Monitor
 - Port Status
 - Refresh Monitor
 - Reset Port
 - Reset Server
 - Exiting NPort Server Monitor

- NPort Pro Diagnostic
 - Toolbar Functions
 - > Configuration
 - Viewer Status and Diagnose
 - ➢ Test Initiation
 - > Printing
 - Saving the Configuration
 - Exiting NPort Pro Diagnostic
- **U**ninstalling the Software

Firmware Utility

Moxa continually upgrades its driver software and server firmware to keep pace with the everexpanding world of computing. You can use the **Firmware Utility** to cany out the upgrade procedure. Access Moxa's Web site at <u>www.moxa.com</u> to download the required computer file (contact our sales department if you need assistance with this), and then follow these instructions.

1. To start Firmware Utility, click on

Start \rightarrow Programs \rightarrow NPort Server Pro \rightarrow Firmware Utility.



2. The Search all NPort Servers window opens, indicating that the program is searching the network for all active NPort Server Pros.



3. After completing the search, the **NPort Server firmware upgrade utility** window opens, listing all NPort Server Pros that were found.

Server Tool <u>H</u> elp				
1 🗳 💁 🚔 ?				
Server Name	Model	IP Address	Serial No	MAC ad
ServerPro52260	DE-303	192 168 127 254	52260	00-90-F

Toolbar Functions

In this section we describe how to use the Firmware Utility toolbar functions.

NPort Server General Info

The **General Info** function can be used to display basic information about a specific NPort Server Pro. To apply the function, do the following:

- 1. Click on the server you would like to obtain information about to highlight it.
- 2. Choose General Info. from the Server menu, or click on the toolbar General Info. icon.

 (\mathbf{i})

3. If the server in question is password protected, enter the password in the Enter Server Password text input box.

Enter Server Password	×
The NPort Server is password protected.Enter the password and press OK.	
Cancel	
4. The NPort Server General Info window opens, displaying the Server Name, IP address, Model Number, Serial Number, MAC Address, and Firmware Version. Attributes that can be modified are displayed in a text input box.

NPort Server Gener	al Info.	×		
You may change Server Name or IP Address for selected NPort server.				
Server Name:	ServerPro52260			
IP:	192.168.127.254			
Model:	DE-303			
Serial No:	52260			
MAC address:	00:90:E8:05:CC:24			
Firmware Version:	1.1			
	OK Cancel			

5. Make modifications as needed, and then click OK to close the window.

Search All NPort Servers



The Search all NPort Servers function can be used to search the network for all active NPort Server Pros.

 Choose Search all servers from the Server menu, or click on the toolbar Search all NPort Servers icon. A search will be initiated, during which time the following window will be visible.

Search all NPort Servers	×
Please wait while system is searching all available NPort Servers	
	(Cancel)

Click on Cancel if during the search you decide that it's no longer necessary to continue. Otherwise, when the search is complete, you will see the NPort Server firmware upgrade utility window. The servers located by the search will be listed in the info box.

Server Tool <u>H</u> elp				
1 🗳 🕿 🚍 😤 🦿				
Server Name 1	Model	IP Address	Serial No	MAC ac
ServerPro52260 [DE-303	192.168.127.254	52260	00:90:E

Connect to an NPort Server Pro



The **Connect an NPort Server** function can be used to manually connect to a specific NPort Server Pro.

- 1. Choose **Connect** from the **Server** menu, or click on the toolbar **Connect an NPort Server** icon.
- 2. The Connect an NPort Server window opens up. Enter the IP address of the server you would like to connect to in the NPort Server IP text input box.

Connect a NPort Server	×
Connect to the NPort Server by manually enter IP address.	
NPort Server IP:	
Cancel	

3. Click OK.





The Upgrade NPort Server function can be used to upgrade the server firmware.

- 1. Access Moxa's Web site at <u>www.moxa.com</u> to download the required computer file (contact our sales department if you need assistance with this).
- 2. Click on the server whose firmware you would like to upgrade to highlight it.
- 3. Choose Upgrade from the Tool menu, or click on the toolbar Upgrade firmware icon.
- 4. The **Upgrade NPort Server** window opens. Either type the upgrade file name in the text input box, or use the **Browse** button to navigate to the folder containing the software, click on the file name to transfer the name to the text input box, and then click **OK** to start upgrading.

Upgrade NPort Serv	ver 🛛 🗙
Enter the file to up	ograde.
Server Name:	ServerPro52260
IP address:	192.168.127.254
Serial No:	52260
	Browse
	OK Cancel

NPort Server Monitor

The first time you run NPort Monitor you will need to set up the configuration by selecting target servers, target ports, and monitoring items. You will be able to save the configuration for the next time you use it, or go back to NPort Server Monitor to check the monitoring information. Check the Help menu if you have trouble using this program.

To start NPort Server Monitor, click on
 Start → Programs → NPort Server Pro → NPort Monitor.



2. The NPort Server Monitor window opens.

NPort Server Monitor	
<u>File M</u> onitor <u>H</u> elp	
F ()	



Toolbar Functions

In this section we describe how to use the NPort Monitor toolbar functions.

Configuring NPort Monitor



You will need to run the **Configure** function before using any of the other functions provided by NPort Server Monitor.

1. Choose **Configure** from the **Monitor** menu, or click on the toolbar **Configure** icon to open the **Monitor configuration** window.



Note: There are three tabs, **Select Port**, **Select Item**, and **General**, located at the top of the window. The **Select Port** page will be opened by default, and the program will find all NPort Server Pros currently connected to the network.

2. Select the server that you want to monitor from the Server IP Address pull down menu. The server information will appear in the Monitoring NPort Server info box.

onitor configuration Select Port Select Item Server IP Address 192.1	General) 68.127.254 (ServerPr	o52260, SerialN	o:52260)	í <u>-</u>] <u>S</u> earch
Name ServerPro52260	IP Address 192 168 127 2	Serial No 52260		Port No.	Port Mappi
	102.100.121.2	02200	1		COM4 COM5
				ビ 4 ビ 5	COM6 COM7
				回 6 回 7	СОМ8 — СОМ9
				☑ 8 ☑ 9	COM10 COM11
				10	COM12 -
<u>D</u> elete Server	Delete Server				
				OK	Cancel

- **3.** The **Port No**. check box, for ports needing to be monitored, should be checked as shown above. For those ports that no longer need monitoring, click inside of the checked box to remove the check mark.
- 4. If you need to delete some servers from the list, highlight the servers to be deleted, and then click on the **Delete Server** button in the lower left hand corner of the Monitor configuration window.
- 5. Click on the **Select Item** tab to open the list of options shown below. This function is provided so that you can select monitoring items according to your needs. Items selected will be displayed in the NPort Server Monitor window. Some operations can be activated simultaneously. Check or uncheck the boxes as needed.

Monitor configuration		
Select Port Select Item Gene	eral	
Model No.	🗖 Baud Rate	Tx total count (From H/W start)
NPort Server Name	🔲 Character mode	🔲 Rx total count (From H/W start)
OP_mode	🔽 Flow Control State	Tx count (From this login)
NPort Server IP Address	DTR	Rx count (From this login)
Port No.	RTS	
Port Mapping	DSR	Rx (CPS)
Connection Status	🗖 СТЗ	Interval Tx (CPS)
🗖 Idle Time	DCD	Interval Rx (CPS)
🗖 Login Name	✓ Interface	_ 、 ,
Login IP Address		Select All
🗖 Login Time		Select Air

6. Click on the **General** tab to set up the **Sampling interval**. This is the time interval the program waits before updating NPort Server Pro's current data. Select a number from the pull-down list, and then click **OK**.

Monitor configuration	
Select Port Select Item Ge	neral
Sampling interval(sec) :	3
	4
	5
	7 💌

7-10 NPort Server Pro User's Manual

 The servers and ports that were selected will be listed in the info box upon returning to the NPort Server Monitor window. General information such as Model No., NPort Server Pro Name, OP_mode, NPort Server Pro IP Address, and Port No. will also be displayed.

NPort Server Monitor							
<u>F</u> ile <u>M</u> oni	tor <u>H</u> elp						
2	<u>a > e 7 e</u>	5 ?					
Model No.	NPort Server Name	OP_mode	NPort Server IP Address	Port No.	Port Mapping	Flow Control State	Inte
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	1	COM3	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	2	COM4	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	3	COM5	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	4	COM6	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	5	COM7	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	6	COM8	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	7	COM9	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	8	COM10	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	9	COM11	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	10	COM12	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	11	COM13	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	12	COM14	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	13	COM15	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	14	COM16	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	15	COM17	CTS, RTS	RS232
ÞE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	16	COM18	CTS, RTS	RS232
•							Þ

Save Configuration



This function is provided so that you can save new or updated configurations for future use after making modifications to the monitoring program.

To save a configuration, do the following:

- 1. Choose Save Configuration from the File menu, or click on the toolbar Save Configuration icon.
- 2. Navigate to the directory where you would like to store the file.
- 3. Type the desired file name in the File Name text input box, and then click on Save.





Load Configuration



This function is provided so that you can load a configuration file that was previously saved. When initating NPort Server Monitor, you will be give the option to load a previously save file.

To load a saved configuration file, do the following (refer to the figure in the previous subsection):

- 1. Choose Load Configuration from the File menu, or click on the toolbar Load Configuration icon.
- 2. Navigate to the directory that contains the configuration file you would like to load (recall that the file extension is .mnt).
- 3. Click on the file name, or type the name into the File name text input box
- 4. Click on **Open** to load the selected configuration file.

Monitor

Once a configuration has been set up, or a configuration file has been loaded, NPort Server Monitor will automatically start monitoring servers and ports. Refer to the figure below for an example of the type of monitoring information that will be displayed. (Check the Help menu to find additional information about using this program.)

NPort S	Server Monitor					-	
<u>F</u> ile <u>M</u> oni	tor <u>H</u> elp						
2	<u>a d</u> e <i>3</i> -	j 💧					
Model No.	NPort Server Name	OP mode	NPort Server IP Address	Port No.	Port Mapping	Flow Control State	Inte
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	1	COM3	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	2	COM4	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	3	COM5	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	4	COM6	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	5	COM7	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	6	COM8	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	7	COM9	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	8	COM10	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	9	COM11	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	10	COM12	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	11	COM13	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	12	COM14	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	13	COM15	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	14	COM16	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	Host based	192.168.127.254	15	COM17	CTS, RTS	RS232
DE-303	ServerPro52260	ASI I	192.168.127.254	16	COM18	CTS, RTS	RS232
•							►

NPort Server Monitor will use different colors to indicate the status of the ports.

- Black means that the port is currently hooked up to your LAN and is active.
- Red means that the port is currently not accessible. It could either be inactive, removed from the LAN, or have a routing error.
- Pink means that two or more NPort Server Pros have been assigned the same IP address. You must use NPort Pro Manager to rectify the situation.

Port Status



This function is used to display a status graph for each port being monitored. It also provides additional information such as TX/RX CPS history.

rt 3 of 192.168.1	27.254(Se	rverPro52260) status	
TxCPS	Tix CPS Hise		*
2756	By CES His		
1890	wh		h
Port Name	СОМ	5 Port Status	CLOSE
Communication Para	ameter		
Baud Rate (bps)	115200	RTS Flow Control	ON
Data Bits	8	CTS Flow Control	ON
Parity	NONE	Input XON/XOFF Flow Control	OFF
Stop Bits	1	Output XON/XOFF Flow Control	OFF
Login Parameter			
NT Host Name			
NT Host IP Address			
Login Time (HH:MM	:SS)		0:0:0
Count/Tx (bytes)			0
Count/Hix (bytes)			
	12	OK	

- 1. Click on the port item you wish to check to highlight it.
- 2. Choose Port Status from the Monitor menu, or click on the toolbar Port Status icon.
- 3. Click OK to return to the NPort Server Monitor window.

Refresh Monitor



This function is provided to allow you to manually update or refresh port information.

- 1. Click on the port you would like to refresh to highlight it.
- 2. Click on **Monitor** and choose **Refresh Monito**r, or click on the toolbar **Refresh Monitor** icon to update port information manually.

7-14 NPort Server Pro User's Manual



This function is provided to allow you to reset the port whenever the NT/95/98 server was not shut down properly, or the network was disconnected. Normally, NPort Server Pro will be launched automatically five minutes after the NT/95/98 server is reconnected. This function allows you to restart the port manually if necessary. While resetting the port, the port transmission process will be halted, and all temporary data will be lost.

 Note: Do not use Port Reset while transmitting IMPORTANT data.

- 1. Click on the port that you are going to reset to highlight it.
- 2. Choose **Reset Port** from the **Monitor** menu, or click on the toolbar **Reset Port** icon to reset the port.
- Note: If you have previously set up the security password using NPort Pro Manager, a Reset Port dialog box will open requesting a password before resetting the port. If you did not set up the security password, the following dialog box will not be displayed.
 - 3. Enter the correct password and then click OK.

3

Reset Port	×
Reset the po	rt 3 of NPort Server ServerPro52260 (192.168.127.254)
The function	may cause temporary data loss on this port.
Password :	
	OK Cancel

Reset Server

This function is provided to allow you to reset NPort Server Pro whenever the NT/95/98 server was not shut down properly or the network was disconnected. Normally, NPort Server Pro will automatically launch five minutes after the NT/95/98 server is reconnected. This function allows you to restart the server manually if necessary. While resetting the server, the server transmission process will be halted and all remaining data will be cleared.

Note: Do not use Reset Server while transmitting IMPORTANT information.

- 1. Click on the server that you are going to reset to highlight it.
- 2. Choose **Reset Server** from the **Monitor** menu, or click on the toolbar **Reset Server** icon to reset the server.

Note: If you have previously set up a security password using NPort Pro Manager, a **Reset Server** window will open requesting a password before resetting the port. If you did not set up the security password, the following dialog box will not be displayed.

3. Enter the correct password, and then click **OK**.

Reset Serve	ar X
Restart the M	Port Server ServerPro52260 (192.168.127.254)
This function	will restart the NPort Server and clear all data remains.
Password :	
	OK Cancel

Exiting NPort Server Monitor

When you have finished using NPort Server Monitor, choose **Exit** from the **File** menu, or click on the close window box in the upper light hand comer of the NPort Server Monitor window.

NPort Pro Diagnostic

NPort Pro Diagnostic is used to test the operation of NPort Server Pro. In this section we explain how to configure and use Nport Pro Diagnostic.

To start NPort Server Diagnostic, click on:

۶. 📻 Accessories Programs 🔽 Firmware Utility **1** NPort Server Pro Documents 👼 Startup 📃 NPort Monitor 🌃 Command Prompt 🔣 NPort Pro Diagnostic <u>S</u>ettings 🔍 Windows NT Explorer 🖵 NPort Pro Manager <u>F</u>ind 😭 Uninstall NPort Server Pro 適 Administrative Tools (Common) <u>H</u>elp 適 HyperSnap-DX 🧾 Startup 2 <u>* *</u> <u>R</u>un. Sh<u>u</u>t Down. 🚮 Start

1. Start \rightarrow Programs \rightarrow NPort Server Pro \rightarrow NPort Pro Diagnostic.

2. The NPort Server Diagnostics window will open, from which you can navigate to the different functions provided by this utility.

Toolbar Functions

In this section we describe how to use the NPort Pro Diagnostic toolbar functions.

ោ

Configuration

The first time you run NPort Server Diagnostics you will need to choose configuration settings by selecting target servers, ports, and diagnostics items.

- 1. To start the configuration procedure, either choose **Config** from the **Diagnose** menu, or click on the toolbar **Config** icon.
- 2. The **Diagnostic Config** window will open, displaying the tabs **Test Object**, **Test Item** and **Communication Parameters**. We start with the **Test Item** tab, which is chosen by default when the window opens.

gnostic Config est Object Test	Item Communicat	ion Parameters]				
Server IP Addres Selected NPort	s 192.168.127.2 Server	54 (ServerPro52	260, SerialN	o:52260) 🔦	Sear	ch
Name	IP Address	Serial No		Port No.	Port Mapping	
	1					
Delete Server						
					ОК	Cancel

3. When the **Diagnostic Config** window first opens, the **Selected NPort Server** info box under the **Test Object** tab is empty. Click on the text box's pull down button and choose the desired server, and then press **Enter** to select.

If the server you' re looking for is not on the list, click on Search to let the program search the network for all connected NPort Server Pros, and then choose the desired server.

4. If the NPort Server Pro you chose is password protected, the following window will open. Type in the correct password and then click **OK**.

NPort Server Password		
NPort Server 192.168	3.127.254	
NP61405		
Please input the server's password		
Password :		
ОК	Cancel	

- **Diagnostic Config** Test Object Test Item Communication Parameters Server IP Address 192.168.127.254 (ServerPro52260, SerialNo:52260) Search Selected NPort Server Name Name IP Address ServerPro52260 192.168.127. Serial No 52260 Port No. Port Mapping 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 сомз COM4 COM5 COM6 COM7 COM8 сомэ COM10 COM11 COM12 COM12 COM13 COM14 -COM15 Delete Server ΟK Cancel
- 5. The server information will now appear in the **Selected NPort Server** information window.

Note: Click the **Search** button before selecting a server from the pull down menu if you add more NPort Server Pros after the Diagnostics utility is initiated.

- 6. The check box for all ports needing to be tested should be checked (refer to the figure in step 5). For those ports that no longer need to be tested, click inside the checked box to remove the check mark.
- If you do not need to change any Test Items or Communication Parameters, click OK to return to the NPort Server Diagnostics window. Otherwise continue the configuration process described in the next sub sections.

Test Item Selection

- 1. Click the **Test Item tab** in the **Diagnostic Config** window.
- 2. The tests that you want to run should be checked. Add or remove check marks as necessary by clicking inside the appropriate check box.
 - □ Internal Test: If this test item is selected an internal test will be done on the RS-232 serial port, and the result (successful or failed) will be displayed when the test is completed.
 - □ External Test: If this test item is selected an external test will be done to check that the connection signals between NPort Server Pro and other points on the line are OK.

- The items described below which are check marked will be tested.
- $\square \quad Tx \leftrightarrow Rx: \text{ Displays test result of transmitting and receiving data between two ports.}$
- $\square \quad RTS \rightarrow CTS: Displays test result of the RTS and CTS signals between two ports.$
- **DTR** \rightarrow **DSR**: Displays test result of the DTR and DSR signal between two ports.
- $\square \quad DTR \rightarrow DCD: Displays test result of the DTR and DCD signal between two ports.$

Diagnostic Config				×
Test Object Test Item Co	ommunication Parameters			
Asynchronous Port Test I	Item			
✓ Internal Test ✓ External Test				
▼ Tx <->	> Rx			
I DTR→	> DSR			
DTR ->	> DCD			
		[ОК	Cancel

Communication Parameters Selection

- 1. Click on the Communication Parameters tab to set up communication parameters.
- 2. Set Baud rate, Data bits, Parity, and Stop bits, to the appropriate values.

Diagnostic Config		X
Test Object Test Item	Communication Parameters	1
<u>B</u> aud rate : <u>D</u> ata bits :	38400	
Parity :	NONE	
<u>S</u> top bits :	1	
	OK	Cancel

Exiting Config

Click **OK** in the bottom right corner of the **Diagnostic Config** window to return to the **NPort Server Diagnostics** window.

NPort Server Diagnostics	
<u>File D</u> iagnose <u>H</u> elp	
To be tested	
ServerPro52260 (192.168.127.254) SerialNo:52260	Select (Config) to set test option Select (Go) to start testing
Ready	





Before starting the testing procedure, you can use the **Server Status** function to check the status of your NPort Server Pro.

1. Choose Server Status from the Diagnose menu, or click on the toolbar Server Status icon to open the NPort Server Status window. The server information displayed is server name, IP address, model number, serial number, and firmware version. The port information displayed is the COM name (COM3 in the example below), serial port interface, and current port status.

Port Serv	er Status	×
	Server52260, 192.168.3.110	<u> </u>
	(Serial No: 52280 , Ver: 1.01)	
	Port 1 - COM3 ,Close	
	Port 2 - COM4 ,Close	
	Port 3 - COM5 ,Close	
	Port 4 - COM6 ,Close	
	Port 5 - COM7 ,Close	
	Port 6 - COM8 ,Close	
	Port 7 - COM9 ,Close	-
	U	

2. Click OK to return to the NPort Server Diagnostics window.

Test Initiation

•	

You can begin testing once all modifications have been made to the test procedure.

- 1. To begin testing, either choose **Go** from the **Diagnose** menu, or click on the toolbar **Go** icon.
- 2. A window containing a warning message opens up. Click **OK** to proceed with the testing.

NPort Lit	e Diagnostic 🛛 🗙
⚠	Warnning! Diagnostic will reset the testing serial ports of NPort Server Do you want to continue?
	Cancel

7-22 NPort Server Pro User's Manual

3. The **Test Status** window that opens displays some basic information about the test and test results. Click on **View Report** to see details about the tests that were done.

est Status	2
Test Object :	Server52280
Test Item :	External test
Test Subitem :	DTR <-> DCD
Test Status :	Test Done
Test Done. Please	press [View Report] to see report

4. The report will be displayed in the **Test Report** info box. Items that tested okay will be marked with a green **OK**. Error codes are in red. To check error messages with corresponding error codes, choose **Error** Code Reference from the **Help** menu in the **NPort Server Diagnostics** window.

If one or more of the test items for a particular server fails, the test object in the To be tested..info box is marked with a red colored Fail.

NPort Server Diagnostics		_ 8 ×
<u>File D</u> iagnose <u>H</u> elp		
🖻 🕨 💌 📕 🎒		
To be tested	Test Report	
DE-334 (NP61405) SerialNo:61405, 192.168.127	NPort Server Server52280 (192.168.3.49) Firmware version = 1.01 Communication parameter=230400 NONE 8 1	<u> </u>
	Internal LoopBack Test	
	[TX/Rx]	
	Port 2 OK	
	Port 3 OK	
	Port 4 OK	
	Port 5 OK	
	Port 6 OK	
	Port / UK	
	Port 9 OK	
	Port 10 OK	
	Port 11 OK	
	Port 12 OK	
	Port 13 OK	
	Port 14 OK	
	Port 15 OK	-
	Port 16 OK	

Printing

The printing function is included to provide a convenient way to print out test reports.

- 1. Click on the NPort Server Pro shown in the **To be tested**..info box to determine which testing report to print.
- 2. Choose **Print**. from the **File** menu, or click on the toolbar **Printer** icon to print out the report.

Saving the Configuration

9



This function allows you to save the diagnostic report in a .txt file for future reference.

- 1. Click on the test object in the **To be tested**..info box.
- 2. Choose Save Report from the File menu, or click on the toolbar Save Report icon to save the report.
- 3. You will be prompted to enter a file name in the **File name** text input box. Click on **Save** to save the file to disk.

Exiting NPort Pro Diagnostic

When you have finished all testing and report procedures, click on **File** and choose **Exit**, or click on the close window box in the upper right hand comer of the NPort Server Diagnostics window.

Uninstalling the Software

If your Windows NT/95/98 host no longer needs access to any NPort Server Pros, you may use the **Uninstall NPort Server** utility to uninstall the driver and software.

To activate Uninstall NPort Server Pro, click on

1. Start \rightarrow Programs \rightarrow NPort Server Pro \rightarrow Uninstall NPort Server Pro.



2. To completely remove the driver and utility programs, select **Automatic**. To remove or modify only part of the installed software, select **Custom**.

Click on **Next** to continue.



3. Click on **Finish** to complete the uninstall procedure.



Х Changing Your Installation Type

This chapter describes how to change between the three application modes -Single-Host, Multi-Host, and Custom-after installation. The only way to change from one application mode to another is to rerun the driver/software Setup program

If you started off by installing your server as Single-Host, you will have noticed, for one thing, that it is not possible to change the server's IP address from this application type. If at some point during the server's operation you find it necessary to change the IP address, share the ports with another NT/95/98 server, or initiate some type of remote control function, you will need to change to a different application mode.

Note that changing between application types will not automatically wipe out previously set configurations. Be sure to select the correct mode for your application. See chapter 2 of this manual for details.



Note: To change to a different application mode, you will need to rerun the Setup program. See chapter 4 to install Single-Host, chapter 5 to install Multi-Host, and chapter 6 to install Custom.

9 Windows 2000–Installation and Configuration

In this chapter, we explain how to configure NPort Server Pro under the Windows 2000 operating system. The installation and configuration procedure is substantially different than for Windows NT/95/98/ME, so read carefully.

We discuss the following topics:

- □ Windows 2000 Driver Intallation
 - Installing NPort Server Pro
 - Installing NPort Server Pro's Serial Port
- □ NPort Server Pro Properties
 - General
 - Configuration
 - NPort Server
 - Port Status
 - Driver

Windows 2000 Driver Installation

Installing NPort Server Pro to run under Windows 2000 involves installing the drivers that are used to operate the NPort Server Pro and its port. This is done by running the Windows 2000 "Add/Remove Hardware Wizard". In fact, unless you have previously installed and then uninstalled an NPort Server Pro on your system, you will need to run the "Add/Remove Hardware Wizard" twice, once to install NPort Server Pro itself, and then once to install NPort Server Pro's ports.

Installing NPort Server Pro

1. From the Windows 2000 desktop, click on Start → Settings → Control Panel.



2. Double click on the Add/Remove Hardware icon.



3. When the Welcome to the Add/Remove Hardware Wizard window opens, click on Next to continue with the installation process.

Installation and Configuration



4. Select the Add/Troubleshoot a device option, and then click on Next to continue.



5. Windows 2000 will spend some searching for a device that is connected directly to your computer. Keep in mind, however, that this procedure does not detect devices that are connected over a network.



6. Select Add a new device and then click on Next to continue.



7. Choose the No, I want to select the hardware from a list option from the next window, and then click on Next to continue.



8. Select Multiport serial adapters and then click on Next to continue.

Hardware Type What type of hardware do you want to	install?	
Select the type of hardware you want to	o install.	
Hardware tupes:		
Infrared devices		^
G Memory technology driver		
A Modems		
Multi-port serial adapters		
Network adapters		
🛃 NT Apm/Legacy Support		
💡 Other devices		
PCMCIA adapters		_
Ports (COM & LPT)		<u> </u>

9. The Select a device driver window displays a list of manufacturers and products. If Moxa's name is not listed, you will need to click on Have Disk.. and then select the NPort Server Pro driver from diskette, CD, or from your hard drive.



10. If necessary, click on Browse...to locate the directory that contains the NPort Server Pro driver. During the installation shown here, the driver was located on the A: drive, so the next step is to click OK. Note from the second figure that the driver name is NPSERVER.

	Locate File	<
	Look jn: 🛃 3½ Floppy (A:) 💽 🗢 🖻 📸 📰 •	
Install From Disk Install From Disk OK Selected, and then cick OK. Cancel	History Desktop My Documents My Computer	
Copy manufacturer's files from:	My Network P	ļ
A.	Files of type: Setup Information (".inf)	1

11. The next window will contain a list of NPort Family products. Select MOXA NPort Server Pro DE-311 and then click on Next to continue.



12. The Start Hardware Installation window should verify that you have chosen the correct driver. Click on Next to continue.



13. You may safely ignore any admonitions such as Digital Signature Not Found. Simply click on Next to continue.



14. A series of windows indicating the progress of the installation procedure will open and then close.

Add/Remove Hardware Wizard Copying Files 🗙	
	Configuration
npottsys To F:\WINNT\System32\DRIVERS Cancel	Please Wait

15. The next window lists all NPort Server Pro units that are currently connected to your network. Select the server you wish to install, or manually enter an IP address of your server if it does not show up in the list. Click on Next to continue.

Select the N Which the	Port Server A	Async Server you want to in: Async Server is that you want to in:	stall stall?
	sting NPort Serv	vers / Async Servers on the LAN	
Model	Serial No	IP Address	
			Scan <u>A</u> gain
O <u>M</u> anually	Enter the IP add	tress of NPort Server / Async Serve	r

16. When the Installation Completed! window opens, check to make sure that the information displayed is correct.

NPort Server / A	sync Server is ready to u	ise.	Ø
Installaion Complet	ed !		
NPort Server / Asy	nc Server Infomation:		
Model:	DE-303		
Name:	NP81		
IP Address:	192.168.127.254		

17. Click on Finish to complete the installation of NPort Server Pro. Keep in mind, however, that you may still need to install the port.



Installing NPort Server Pro's Serial Port

If you or someone else has previously installed an NPort Server Pro on your system, then NPort Server Pro's serial port should be installed automatically. In this case, you may skip this section and continue to the section "NPort Server Pro Properties".

If this is the first time that anyone has installed an NPort Server Pro on your system, the following window should open automatically.

1. When the Found New Hardware Wizard starts up, choose the option Search for a suitable driver for my device (recommended) and then click on Next to continue.



2. Choose the Specify a location option from the Locate Driver Files window, and then click on Next

to continue.



3. If necessary, click on Browse...to locate the directory that contains the NPort Server Pro driver. During the installation shown here, the driver was located on the A: drive, so the next step is to click OK. Note from the second figure that the driver name is NPORT.

	Locate File	? ×
	Look jn: 🛃 3½ Floppy (A:) 💌 🖛 🛍 📸	
Found New Hardware Wizard	History Desktop My Documents My Concuterts My Concuterts	
Copy manufacturer's files from:	File name: NPORT.INF	n
A: Browse	Files of type: Setup Information (".inf)	:el

4. The next window verifies that a MOXA communication port will be installed, and the correct driver, nport.ini, will be used for the installation.

Installation and Configuration



5. Click on Finish to complete the installation procedure.



NPort Server Pro Properties

NPort Server Pro's configuration parameters, such as IP address, COM port number, etc., are easily changed from within the Windows 2000 system's device manager.

1. To evoke the device manager, double click on the System icon from the Control panel window.



2. Select the Hardware tab, and then click on Device Manager...

System Properties	?	×
General Network Identification Hardware User Profiles Advanced		
Hardware Wizard The Hardware wizard helps you install, uninstall, repair, undur, align and configure you hardware		
Hardware Wizard		
Device Manager		
The Device Manager lists all the hardware devices installed on your computer. Use the Device Manager to change the properties of any device.		
Driver Signing Device Manager		
Hardware Profiles		
Hardware profiles provide a way for you to set up and store different hardware configurations.		
Hardware <u>P</u> rofiles		
OK Cancel App	dy.	

3. Click on the plus sign to the left of Multi-port serial adapters and then double click on MOXA NPort Server Pro DE-303 or DE-308 to open the Properties window.
| Action view | | | |
|---|---|---|--|
| 3 🕺 🗶 | | | |
| ⊡ <u>–</u> , MOXA-117W | KXKMA2 | | |
| E B Compute | r | | |
| | s
R∩M drives | | |
| E Stoppy d | sk controllers | | |
| 🗉 🖃 Floppy d | sk drives | | |
| 🗄 🚭 IDE ATA, | ATAPI controllers | | |
| E 👸 Keyboari | ls | | |
| | uuler pointing devices
t serial adapters | | |
| | A NPort Server Pro DE-303 | | |
| 🗄 🕮 Network | adapters | | |
| 🗄 🖉 Ports (C | OM & LPT) | | |
| ⊕ | ideo and game controllers | | |
| ± <u>=</u> system o | ICVILOS | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| A NPort Server Pro D | - 303 Properties | 0 M | |
| A NPort Server Pro D | 5-303 Properties | 1
1
1
1 | |
| A NPort Server Pro D | ⊖303 Properties | 1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1 | |
| A NPort Server Pro D | 5-303 Properties | £ X | |
| A NPort Server Pro D | 5-303 Properties | | |
| A NPort Server Pro D | Server Pro DE-303 | E X | |
| A NPort Server Pro D
Corrgunan [
MOXA NPor
Device type | 5303 Properties | | |
| ANPort Server Pro D
Corguston I I
MOXA NPor
Device type
Kandachara | 5303 Properties
Web Sarver Pro DE 303
Multiple Table adgress
Man Technologie Inc. | 2 | |
| ANPort Server Pro D
ref Corrowstan [T
wMOXA NPor
Device type:
Manufacture
Locator | 5303 Properties
ever
Server Pro DE 303
Multiport retis adgres
Mana Technologies Inc.
Universe | | |
| ANPort Server Pro D
Confguetan I T
Londox ANPor
Device type:
Londox
Device type:
Londox | S303 Properties
event
Server Pro DE 303
Mail port retis adgines
Mais Technologies Inc.
Urknews | | |
| ANPort Server Pro D
Congueran T
Manageran
Device type:
Manageran
Device state
This desice a moding | S303 Properties
Net Server Pro DE-303
Multiplatisets adgines
Mass Technologies Inc.
Uthraws | | |
| ANPort Server Pro D
red Corrgueston [
Samos An Por
Device type:
Mandaetum
Locator
Device type:
Mandaetum
Locator
Device type:
Mandaetum
Locator
This device a molifier | 5303 Properties
Server Pro DE 303
Multiplet sells adaptes
Mais Technologies les
Universe | 2 | |
| ANPort Server Pro D
re di Costguesten I t
Mandastane
Device type
Mandastane
Locolori
Device I stala
The desice is molting
is you are harmp provide
are harmp providered | 5303 Properties
Server Pro DE 303
Mathport sells adgeles
Mass Technologies les:
Universe
Divinese
propery.
Pro with the device silo, Trouble | E Room to | |
| ANPort Server Pro D
Configuration T
New Configuration T
Device type:
Lossion
Device Islan
This desice a molifing
This desice a molifing
tigo de hering public
dat the tracket device | S303 Properties
Net Server Pro DE 303
Multiport retis adgres
Mass Technologies Inc.
Universe
Distance
propery.
minimital dense, allok Tould | e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e | |
| ANPort Server Pro D
med Conguestan T
water and the server server
Manualatume
Lossion
Device state
The desice and sing
The desice and sing
and the tracks bedread | 5303 Properties
Server Pro DE 303
Multipert retis adgres
Mais Technologies Inc.
Universe
Drocely.
In with the device, slick Trouble | e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e | |
| ANPort Server Pro D
ref Corrgunation (
Corrgunation (
NetWorkstore
Location
Device type:
Manufacture
Location
Device type:
Manufacture
Location
Device type:
Manufacture
Location
Device type:
Manufacture
Location
Device type:
Manufacture
Location
Device type:
Manufacture
Location | Saver Pro DE 303 Server Pro DE 303 Multiport sells adques Mass Technologies Inc. Ubinavia Discely. Inc. with the device alloi. Trouble | E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E | |

Configuration

Select the Properties window's Configuration tab to change parameter settings for your NPort Server Pro. Most of the system settings are accessed by clicking on Settings (see the "NPort Server" subsection below). The COM port number can be changed by clicking on Ports Setting (see the "Port Status" subsection below).

MOXA NPort Server Pro DE 303 Properties ? X
General Configuration Driver
NPort Server / Async Server Status
Model: [DE-303
IP Address: 192.168.127.254
Settings
Port Status
COM Number: COM3-COM18
Ports Setting
OK Cancel

NPort Server

Clicking on Settings in the above Properties window causes NPort Server Pro's Property Sheet to open. If prompted, enter NPort Server Pro's password, and then click OK to continue.



The Basic Configuration page, open by default, allows you to make changes to the following items.

Server Name	Choose an appropriate name for NPort Server Pro. The default name is simply "NP" followed by the serial number.
IP Address	Check with your network administrator.
Notmook	255.255.0.0 is for Class B networks.
Netmask	255.255.255.0 is for Class C networks.
Gateway	This is the IP address of the router connecting your LAN to the Internet.
DHCP	Click on the DHCP box to allow NPort Server Pro's IP address to be chosen automatically by a DHCP server

9-14 NPort Server Pro User's Manual

	connected to yo	our LA
operty Sheet		×
Basic Configuration Password	Interface Setting Access Control	
Model Name: DE-303		
Serial Number 81		
		-
<u>S</u> erver Name	NP81	
IP Address	192 . 168 . 127 . 254	
Net <u>m</u> ask	255 . 255 . 0 . 0	
<u>G</u> ateway	192 . 168 . 1 . 254	
	DHCP	

The Password page allows you to change the password. Click the Remember Password box to have the password automatically stored by your operating system.

Property Sheet			×
Basic Configuration Password	Interface Setting	Access Control	
Change Password			
Current Password:	3000000X		
New Password:	2000000X		
Confirm Password:	XXXXXXX		
<u>Remeber Password</u>	J		
		OK	Cancel

The Interface Setting page shows the current Serial Port interface setting. You must use the DIP switch settings on NPort Server Pro's front panel to make any changes. To see changes in the setting, click OK at the bottom of the Property Sheet window to close the window, and then follow the instructions given above to reopen the window.

NPort Server Pro User's Manual 9-15

Property Sheet
Basic Configuration Password Interface Setting Access Control
Port Interface
1 RS-232
Tip: Use Shift/Ctrl key to multi-select.
Moary
OK Cancel

The Access Control page can be used to allow access to NPort Server Pro's serial port. The process of adding and removing IP addresses is straightforward, although three comments are in order.

You may add access by IP Address as shown here.		
Property Sheet		
Basic Configuration Password Interface Setting Access Control		
View access control list by IP Address		
Add IP		
port I		
Eemove		
Modiy		
Tip: Delete All IP Address to Grant All.		
OK Cancel		
• You may ad	Id access by Port as shown here.	



• There are two options to choose from when adding access. Choose Single Host to only allow access to the computer with the given IP Address. Choose A Group of Host to allow access to a group of computers. In the example shown here, computers connected to the same LAN as NPort Server Pro, and with IP addresses of the form 192.168.xxx.xxx, will all be given access. More specific (limited or wider) access can be granted by considering the bit-by-bit versions of both the IP Address and Netmask.

Add Access Grant IP 🛛 🔀	Add Access Grant IP	×
Single Host	Single Host	
C A <u>G</u> roup of Host	A Group of Host	
IP Address 192 . 168 . 4 . 12	JP Address 192 . 168 . 4 . 12	
Net <u>m</u> ask 255 . 255 . 0 . 0	Net <u>m</u> ask255 255 0 0	
0K Cancel	OK Cancel	

Port Status

NPort Server Pro's serial port's COM number can be changed by clicking on the Ports Setting button.

MOXA NPort Express DE-311 Properties	? ×
General Configuration Driver	
NPort Server / Async Server Status	
Model: DE-303	
IP Address: 192.168.127.254	
<u><u>s</u>ettings</u>	
Port Status	
COM Number: COM3-COM18	
Ports Setting	
OK Ca	ncel

Click on Modify Setting to make changes.

Port Configuration				×
Port Setting				
Port	Number	Tx Mode	TxFIFO	
☑ 1	COM3	Hi-Performance	Enable	
			Martin Canada	
		_	Modily Setting	
		OK	Cancel	

Use the following window to change the Port Number, Transmission Mode, and TxFIFO.

Change Port Setting Port Number COM3	X Auto Enumerating COM Number
Transmission Mode	Tx EIF0 C Enable C Disable I Set The Change to <u>A</u> II Port
	OK Cancel

Driver

The Driver page displays important information about the driver. Use the buttons at the bottom of the window for Driver Details., Uninstall the driver, or Update Driver.

MOXA NPort Express DE-31:	l Properties 🛛 🛛 🕺 🗙		
General Configuration Driv	ver		
MOXA NPort Server	Pro DE-303		
Driver Provider:	Moxa Technologies Inc.		
Driver Date:	Not available		
Driver Version:	1.0.2.0		
Digital Signer:	Not digitally signed		
Digital Signer: Not digitally signed To view details about the driver files loaded for this device, click Driver Details. To uninstall the driver files for this device, click Uninstall. To update the driver files for this device, click Update Driver.			
<u>D</u> river Details	Uninstall Update Driver		
	Close Cancel		

A Troubleshooting

This appendix explains how to solve some of the most common problems you could encounter while using NPort Server Pro. If you are still having problems after reading this chapter, contact your dealer, or e-mail Moxa for help. You may also use the "Problem Report Form" at the end of this manual to notify your dealer that you require prompt technical support.

We cover the following topics.

- □ Installation and Configuration Troubleshooting
- Programming Problems
- LED Descriptions

Installation and Configuration Troubleshooting

• Cannot use the first computer installed with the Single-Host NPort Pro Manager to access NPort Server Pro.

For security reasons, and to simplify operations, the Single-Host Mode allows only one host to connect to NPort Server Pro at a time. Thus, if while using the single-host type of installation you discover that the server has already been configured with password protection, it is advised that you check to see if two or more NT/95/98 hosts are sharing the same NPort Server Pro configured for Single-Host Mode. If you wish to use more than one host to access the same NPort Server Pro, you will need to install NPort Server Pro under Custom Mode.

NPort Server Pro User's Manual A-1

Cannot change IP address or other server properties.

There are two situations that could give rise to this problem.

- 1. *Password Mismatch* If you type the wrong password while running NPort Pro Manager, the Manager program automatically assumes that you are not the administrator. The administrator of the server is the only one allowed to modify the server's configuration. Keep in mind that even when multiple hosts share the same server, access to the server's administrative functions is still protected. If you need to change some configuration settings, you will have to ask your administrator for help. If you are the administrator but forget the password, you can erase the current password yourself by pressing the RESET key on NPort Server Pro's back panel for three seconds.
- 2. *Error Installation Type* You cannot change the server IP address if you are installing NPort Server Pro under Single-Host Mode. Setting the installation procedure up in this way makes the Single-Host Mode configuration procedure very similar to installing a traditional multi-port serial board. Under Single-Host Mode, users are only allowed to modify the server's name and password. This is because Single-Host users are not sharing their NPort Server Pro with other hosts. If you do need to modify other properties, run the setup program and change to another mode of operation (see Chapter 8 for details).
- You would like to allow one more host to access your NPort Server Pro, but are unable to reach the page for Access Control.
 - 1. Check the NPort Manager mode. If it is Single-Host Mode, reinstall it as either Multi-Host Mode or Custom Mode.
 - 2. Double check your credentials to make sure that you are the administrator.
- After installing NPort Server Pro, the NPort Pro Manager program indicates "'Unauthorized" status for some of the ports.

This means that NPort Server Pro's Access Control List does not contain your computer's correct IP address. This can happen in one of two ways:

- 1. Your NT/95/98 machine is just one of the hosts sharing the ports on the selected server, and you do not provide the server password while installing NPort Server Pro.
- 2. You install NPort Server Pro at a local site, with no access problems, but later move the server to a remote site and connect through a WAN. Due to the different network interface connection, your IP address might have changed, and as a consequence, you are no longer on the server's Access Control List.

A-2 NPort Server Pro User's Manual

To solve this problem:

- 1. Confirm your IP address with NPort Server Pro.
- 2. Ask the administrator to set up the server configuration so that you are on NPort Server Pro's Access Control List.
- While running NPort Pro Manager, a question mark, '?', shows up on top of the server icon, and you are unable to enter server properties.

This means that the host cannot find the server. Here are some steps you can take to recover from this problem:

If the host and server are in the same location:

- 1. Make sure NPort Server Pro's power cable is plugged in, and the server is receiving power.
- 2. Check that the server's network connector is plugged in properly.
- 3. Make sure your computer is properly connected to the network.
- **4.** Double click on the server icon that has the question mark (?) on top. This will evoke NPort Pro Manager to reconnect with the server.

If the server is at remote site:

- 1. Make sure the network connection to the remote site is okay. If no route can be established to the remote server, and you are connecting through the Internet, you may need to wait until the route is reestablished.
- 2. If the route is okay, try running

ping [server-IP-address]

from your NT host, where [server-IP-address] is the server's IP address. If the server cannot be pinged, you will need to ask someone at the remote site to check and see if the power is on, and make sure that the connection is okay. And then double click on the server icon that has the question mark (?) on top. This will evoke NPort Pro Manager to reconnect with the server.

If the problem is still not fixed, contact Moxa technical support for further information.

• You cannot find the server after rebooting your Windows NT/95/98 server.

It's possible that you have a DHCP server on your network. Since DHCP servers can assign IP addresses, the IP address for either the host or NPort Server Pro might have been changed. To recover from this problem, you should:

- 1. Ask the administrator of your DHCP server to assign a dedicated IP address to both your Windows NT/95/98 host and to NPort Server Pro.
- 2. Make sure your NPort Manager Pro operating mode is either Multi-Host or Custom.
- **3.** Change the IP address of the server to the dedicated IP address assigned by your DHCP administrator.
- 4. Change the IP address of your Windows NT/95/98 host to the dedicated IP address assigned by your DHCP administrator.

- 5. Modify the Security list to include your NT/95/98 host.
- 6. Save Configuration.

Programming Problems

Win32 COMM API functions return fail, or the PComm Pro library functions return a Fail code - SIO_WIN32FAIL

The fail code for the COMIM API functions implies something different than the fail code received from the standard COM driver. For example, you get the fail code when the network connected to the server is unreachable, or the server is offline. If the network connection is through the Internet, the network could be unreachable if Internet traffic is jammed. This does not mean you have a defective server. To recover from this type of error, you can modify your program so that the port is automatically closed and then re-opened.

You should also check the following to make sure that the problem is only with the TCP/IP network:

- 1. If the server is off-line, turn it on.
- 2. If the route to NPort Server Pro is reachable, you may test it by using

Ping [NPort-Server-Pro-IP-address]

If a route to the server cannot be established, check your routing table or the server's routing table.

Note: Please refer to Appendix D to learn how to configure your Windows NT/95/98 to the dedicated IP address.

To solve this problem, programs should:

- 1. Try to re-open the port if the fail code is returned during the open (i.e. sio_open) session.
- 2. If the fail code returns while writing data, reading data, changing settings, etc., you should close the file handler, and then try to open the port again.

LED Description



LED	COLOR	Description
Power	Red	Indicates that NPort Server Pro is turned on, and power is being supplied to the server.
Ready	Green	Steady on indicates that NPort Server Pro is running without problem. Flashing indicates the server is being located by the NPort Pro Manager Locate Server function.
100M	Green	Steady on indicates that NPort Server Pro's Ethernet connection is running at 100 Mbps.
10M	Green	Steady on indicates that NPort Server Pro's Ethernet connection is running at 10 Mbps.
Traffic	Green	Blinking indicates data is being received from the Ethernet Interface.
Tx	Green	Blinking indicates that there's outgoing data through the serial port.
Rx	Green	Blinking indicates that there's incoming data through the serial port.

NOTE: The number of Tx/Rx LEDs depends on the model you use. For DE-303, there are 16 Tx and Rx LEDs. For DE-308, there are 8.

B About PComm Pro

PComm Pro is a professional serial comm developing tool for PCs running Windows NT or Windows 95/98. It consists of a powerful serial communication library for easy programming in most popular programming languages. Furthermore, it contains useful utilities, such as Terminal Emulator, Data Scope, and Performance Analyzer, as well as illustrative example programs and comprehensive online documents.

With the serial communication library, you can develop systems for data communication, remote access, data acquisition or industrial control in the Windows NT and Windows 95/98 environment. PComm Pro offers an easier solution as compared to the more complex Windows Win32 COMM API.

PComm Proincludes over 50 easy-to-use API functions specially designed for serial comm, and prevents you from struggling with sophisticated Microsoft Win32 API. Hence, it greatly saves developing time and cost. (The API functions can be used for any serial comm hardware that supports Microsoft Win32 driver; e.g. DIGI boards, standard com ports, etc.)

We cover the following topics in this chapter:

- Features
- Benefits

Features

- Easy-to-use API (more than 50 functions)
- Supports Zmodem, Ymodem, Xmodem
- UB, C++, Delphi, examples
- Compatible to standard COMs
- Terminal Emulator, Datascope

Benefits

- Eliminates the need to use the more complicated Microsoft Win32 API
- Easy to develop
- Easy to debug
- Quick time to market
- Portable API, investment guaranteed

For more information, check the PComm Pro CD included with your NPort Server Pro.



Note: NPort Server Pro only includes the PComm Pro software. For a Pcomm diagnostic cable, refer to the PComm Pro manual to make the cable yourself, or contact Moxa to purchase a cable.

B-2 NPort Server Pro User's Manual

C Cable Pinouts

This appendix lists the cables that you may use with NPort Server Pro, and includes information needed to make your own cable.

We cover the following topics:

- □ 10/100BaseT Port Pinouts
- □ Asynchronous Port Pinouts
- CN20040-RJ45 to Male DB25 RS-232 Cable Pinouts

10/100BaseT Port Pinouts

Listed below are the pinouts for the 10BaseT port on NPort Server Pro.

8-Pin Description

1	Tx+
2	Tx-
3	Rx+
6	Rx-



NPort Server Pro User's Manual C-1

Asynchronous Port Pinouts

Listed below are the pinouts for the asynchronous port on NPort Server Pro.

10-Pin Description

1	DCD
2	DSR
3	RTS
4	GND
5	TxD
6	RxD
7	GnD
8	CTS
9	DTR
10	



C-2 NPort Server Pro User's Manual

CN20040 – RJ45 to Male DB25 RS-232 Cable Pinouts



D Setting Up a Windows NT/95/98 Network

In order use a PC via an Ethemet network to control serial devices connected to NPort Server Pro, you must first have a host running Windows NT/95/98 This type of application also requires the host to have an Ethemet card and TCP/IP protocol installed. If your computer does not already have an Ethemet card installed, you will need to purchase one, and then follow the instructions provided by the Ethemet card manufacturer to install and set up the card.



Note: We recommend installing a **PCI Ethernet card** on your NT/95/98 host. Because of the BUS difference, a PCI bus Ethernet card will perform much better than an ISA Ethernet card. The PCI card reduces system loading under high speed and multiple port usage.

NPort Server Pro User's Manual D-1

Problem Report Form

NPort Server Pro

Customer name:				
Company:				
Tel:	Fax:			
Email:	Date:			

- 1. Moxa Product: DE-308 (8 RS-232 ports) DE-303 (16 RS-232 ports)
- 2. Serial Number: ____
- 3. NPort Pro Firmware Version: _____
- 4. NPort Pro Manager Version: _____
- 5. PC Host: Make _____ Model _____
- 6. CPU: Speed _____MHz Make _____ Model _____
- 7. Ethernet Card : 🗆 ISA Card Make_____ 🗖 PCI Card Make: _____
- 8. Your Installation Type:
 Single-Host
 Custom
- **9. Problem Description:** Please describe the symptoms as clearly as possible, including any error messages you see. We may have to follow your description to reproduce the symptoms, so please give a complete description of the problem.

RETURN PROCEDURE

For product repair, exchange, or refund, the customer must:

Provide evidence of original purchase.

Obtain a Product Return Agreement (PRA) from the sales representative or dealer.

Fill out the Problem Report Form (PRF). Include as much detail as possible for a shorter product repair time.

Carefully pack the product in an anti-static package, and send it, pre-paid, to the dealer. The PRA should be visible on the outside of the package, and include a description of the problem, along with the return address and telephone number of a technical contact.